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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
ERHEA

Dear Shareholders,

The year 2017 was an extraordinary year for the Group. It
was also a critical year in the development history of the
Group.

During the Year, the Group implemented a strategic
transformation, and successfully established itself into
a renewable energy power generation company. At the
early stage of entering the renewable energy industry,
EPC business has been the core business of the Group.
Through several years of accumulation in capital and
installed capacity and with the enhancement of financing
capabilities, the Group has now successfully accomplished
its strategic adjustment, and become a renewable energy
operator with power generation business as its main
business. In 2017, power generation output attributable to
the Group increased steadily by 17.79% over the previous
year. In particular, the power generation from the Group’s
wholly-owned and holding wind power plants represented
a significant increase of 310.85% over the previous year.
The proportion of revenue from power generation business

to the Group'’s revenue increased significantly to 69.27%.

During the Year, the Group continued to implement
the strategy to restructure its assets, further improving
the structure of its power generation assets. Due to the
estimate of increased solar power curtailment in some
regions, the Group sold the 200MW solar power plant
located in Yulin, Shaanxi Province during the Year. The
proceeds from the sale are used to invest in the wind power
projects in the southern China where power curtailment is
not implemented. We noticed that in most southern China,
wind power plants are able to achieve relatively sound net
cash inflows despite of the default of existing renewable
energy subsidies. During the Year, the total installed
capacity of newly commissioned power plants was 439MW,
all of which are wholly-owned by the Group. In particular,
384MW installed capacity comes from wind power plants
located in the southern China with no power curtailment.
As at the end of the Year, the installed capacity attributable
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
EEHA

to the Group was 1,806 MW, with proportion of installed
capacity of its wholly-owned and holding power plants
increased to 63.12%. Among those wholly-owned and
holding power plants, the installed capacity of wind power
plants accounted for 73.49%, meaning the assets structure
of the Group has been improved with better quality of

assets.

During the Year, the Group insisted on the strategy
to lower the Levelized Cost Of Electricity (“LCOE"). In
particular, we actively tracked and timely applied new
technologies, new wind turbine types, and new processes
in the construction of the Group’s invested projects and
built high-quality, high-efficiency power plants at low
costs. We also promoted the application of energy internet
in the production of power plants, implemented refined
management and minimized required manpower, thus
reducing the cost of power generation. The application of
POWER+ system has improved the level of operation and
maintenance, and increased equipment availability and
power generation output. The newly commissioned power
plants of the Group in 2017 have significantly reduced the
LCOE, and so did the established power plants.

During the Year, the Group vigorously developed energy
internet application technologies and actively created
intelligent operation and maintenance. On 24 February,
the Group released “"POWER+1.0"”, an advanced energy
internet cloud platform in the industry, which has been
thoroughly applied in all of its wholly-owned wind farms
and solar power plants, and is playing a significant role in
operation decisions, accurate operation and maintenance,
error prediction, and equipment defect diagnosis of power
plants. The “POWER+" product also received industry
recognitions. It won the “Best Product Breakthrough
of the Year” at the 2nd China International Energy
Internet Summit, and the “Energy Internet Cloud Platform
Innovation Award of the Year” at the 2nd Energy Internet
“the Belt and Road” decision-maker summit. The Group’s
operation and maintenance company was also awarded
the first prize of the “Top Ten Wind Power Operation and

Maintenance Enterprises in 2017".
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
ERHEA

After a year of efforts, the operation of the Group’s main
businesses has become more efficient, its asset quality has
become much healthier, its overall capability has become
much stronger, all contributing to a much greater growth
momentum.

We firmly believe that technological advancement will
continue to drive up the commercial value of renewable
energy power generation in the future. There is still a lot
of room for the advancement of the renewable energy
technologies, meaning that there will be continuous
reduction in the cost of power generation and renewable
energies will have more competitive advantage. Following
the arrival of the grid parity era, the pace of renewable
energy replacing traditional fossil energy will accelerate with
the increasing popularity of renewable energies. This field,
undoubtedly, will have enormous development potential in
the future.

With the continuous heightening of electricity power
system reform in China, the electricity trading market will
eventually be established and the day of grid parity for
renewable energies will not be far. In order to take a place
in the future development, lowering the LCOE in power
plants is our only choice. Since achieving the lowest LCOE
will continue to be the Group’s core competitiveness, the
Group will unremittingly endeavour to reduce LCOE and
improve its competitiveness by every possible means, to
meet the challenges in the coming era of grid parity for
renewable energies. The Group will continue to increase its
investment in the area of energy internet and establish a
world-class team by attracting talents. We will also continue
to promote the development and applications of the
"POWER+" products, and advance the industrial revolution
in power plant operations through technological means.

We believe 2018 will be a year of leapfrog development for
the Group. By seizing the favorable opportunities at this
moment, all our employees will significantly contribute to
the increase of installed capacity of wind power, lowering
LCOE and expanding the internet applications, with an
objective to build a world-class renewable energy power
generation enterprise, thus providing the society with
more clean energies and contributing more to an improved
ecological environment with better environmental quality.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEBNWE DM

OPERATING ENVIRONMENT

In 2017, the operating environment was conducive
to the Group’'s strategic transformation and
development. The world continued to prize renewable
energies and environmental protection with great
concerns. With wind power and solar power still the
cleanest energies and popular around the world,
various countries introduced measures beneficial to
the development of new energies, promoting the
rapid development of wind and solar power industries.
During the year, the Chinese government pushed
forward with energy conservation and emissions
reduction to counter the construction of traditional
fuel fossil power, such as coal power, generation
plants, in a bid to encourage the development of
renewable energies. As China’s economy develops
steadily, the total amount of energy consumption
grows faster. China’s GDP for 2017 was 6.9% higher
year-on-year. China’s total electricity consumption
for the year was 6.3077 trillion kWh, representing
year-on-year growth of 6.6%, 1.6 percentage points
higher than the growth of last year. China’s wind
power and solar power generation machine numbers
continued to rise steadily whereas distributed solar
power development in the country showed explosive
growth. The newly installed grid-connected wind
power capacity was 15.03GW, while the total
installed grid-connected capacity reached 164GW,
representing a year-on-year increase of 10.5%. The
newly installed solar power generation capacity was
53.06GW, of which, the newly installed solar power
generation capacity from centralised power stations
was 33.62GW, representing a year-on-year increase
of 11%, while that of distributed power stations was
19.44GW, representing a year-on-year increase of 3.7
times. As of 31 December, the national installed solar
power capacity reached 130GW.

RERIR

20175 - BRERFE AR A EEHHE
MREER B R o A] BARERAIRIGRE
DAEERMBIMER - BAE - KiF6
EAREABRENER NI E2HRSE
B SESHLETEBIERERD
EhE RETREE - KGREEERNRR
BR -ATE  PRBUTEEKRNH#HED
EiBER B BRAEEERICAERE
MEZAE ZETHERERER-
PRAERTER  CREELEE
HANR - 2017 F R BIGDPEL EF R
6.9%  FEEMEAEE63,077ET
FLRs  ELERG6.6%  REFIES1.6
Mas2- FRHEEMAGEEES
BWHEERIFESIEREE  DMAAKEG
HEBREANER - TEREHEDTE
1,503& TF - Rt a=2:E51.64
BFE ' FLERI10.5% ° I8 K5EE
BERKS306ETE Hep» £
Biuh3,3628 T - BELLIEIN11% 9
A KIGHRE 1,944 BT - RiER3.7
BeoH12AK  2HAMGEEERKE
E1308FR -

2017 ANNUAL REPORT

2017 £ 3R 07



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEBNWE DM

OPERATING ENVIRONMENT (CONTINUED)

In 2017, the operating environment of renewable

energy in China displayed the following

characteristics:

(1

Macro-economic Policies Pushing Forward
the Sustainable Development of Wind Power
and Solar Power Generation

In the year, the Chinese government continued
to give strong support to the development
of renewable energy and proposed a non-
fossil energy consumption proportion target
at 14.3% for 2017, representing 1% increase
from last year. During the year, the Chinese
government launched a series of policies aimed
at resolving problems relating to wind power
and solar power curtailment, including: a power
generation priority plan to protect the existing
clean energies in the national development
plan such as wind power and solar energy, a
policy that required coal power capacity be
eliminated, ceased and suspended, thereby
providing priority for connecting renewable
energy power generation to power grids and
pushing forward with measures for clean
heating supply to northern China in winter, thus
generating development room for clean energies
and effectively alleviate the curtailment of wind
power and solar power. Additionally, the power
consumption growth in society for 2017 has
provided a beneficial condition for the alleviation

of renewable energy curtailment.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEBNWE DM

OPERATING ENVIRONMENT (CONTINUED)

(2)

Rapid Improvement in Renewable Energy
Technology

In the year, renewable energy technology
continued its rapid development. The efficiencies
of renewable energy facilities have been
increasing year by year. The longer wind turbine
blade, higher turbine towers, heightened wind
energy conversion efficiency, and the better
low-wind speed performance, with largely
bolstered turbine quality and operating stability.
In respect of solar power generation, both the
conversion efficiency of PV modules and solar
thermal power and energy storage technology
have improved. These factors make it possible
to increase the development of wind and solar
resources. The purchase cost of wind turbines
and the price of solar power modules have both
decreased as compared with the same period in

the previous year.

Advancement in renewable energy power
generation technology constantly drove down
the Levelized Cost Of Electricity (“LCOE") and
enhanced the competitiveness of renewable
energy commercialisation and operations. In the
age of grid parity, the advantages of renewable

energy development are increasingly evident.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEBNWE DM

OPERATING ENVIRONMENT (CONTINUED)

(3)

(4)

General Reduction in Wind Power and Solar
Power Curtailment Rates in Northern China
in 2017

According to the statistics for 2017 released by
the National Bureau of Energy, China’s wind
power curtailment rate stood at 12%, a year-on-
year decline of 5.2 percentage points, and the
situations have mostly improved for areas with
high wind power curtailment rates. The solar
power curtailment rate stood at 6%, a year-on-
year decrease of 4.3 percentage points. Solar
power popularity has increased in areas with
severe curtailment, like Xinjiang and Gansu. In
2017, China’s average of wind hours available
reached 1,948 hours, a year-on-year increase of
203 hours.

Sweeping Power System Reform Heightened

In 2017, China’s power system reform
deepened in all areas. The incremental power
distribution network reform was carried out
in an orderly manner, and the national mixed
ownership reform has been introduced to the
construction of power distribution networks. As
domestic electricity markets emerged, electricity
transaction centres in 18 provinces ran pilot
schemes for power sale reform. Except for
Tibet, all provincial electricity transmission tariff
proposals were all approved, an initial scientific
mechanism was established for provincial
electricity transmission tariffs. The verification
work for cross-provincial and cross-district
power transmission tariffs were fully started,
paving the way for future national transactions.
The power system reform will be conducive to
the rapid development of renewable energy.
Market transaction means can increase the
competitiveness of renewable energies in the era
of grid parity, so as to solve the fundamental
problems encountered in the development of
renewable energy.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEBNWE DM

OPERATING ENVIRONMENT (CONTINUED)

(5)

Further Promote Green Power Certificates

and Carbon Market Development

In 2017, the Renewable Energy Green Power
Certificate ("Green Licence”) policy was
implemented. Renewable energy power
generation companies can choose to undergo
green power certification and enter the market,
in order to make up for the government’s issue
that renewable energy subsidies are not timely
issued. At present, the Green Licence trading
is still a voluntary subscription trading scheme.
It can be foreseen that in the future, the
compulsory restriction system will be promoted

for emission companies.

In December 2017, the National Development
and Reform Commission of the People’s Republic
of China formally issued the “National Carbon
Emission Trading Market Development Plan
(Power Generation Industry)”. This indicates that
China has officially commenced the construction
of a nationwide carbon emissions trading system.
With the construction of a nationwide carbon
emissions trading market, certified voluntary
emission reduction of Chinese Certified Emission
Reduction (CCER) and other trading products

will gradually be allowed for trading.

Green Licence trading and carbon market
transactions will become a supplement for
renewable energy prices, providing strong
support for grid parity of renewable energy

power generation.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEBNWE DM

OPERATING ENVIRONMENT (CONTINUED)

() Continuance of Stable Financing
Environment

In 2017, China’s monetary policy remained
sound and neutral and financing costs for
renewable energy projects increased slightly, yet
still remained at relatively low levels. The support
from the financial system for the renewable
energy industry remained unchanged.

BUSINESS REVIEW

In 2017, the Group continued to implement a strategic
transformation and increase investment in power
plants, successfully transformed itself into a renewable
energy power generation company. The installed
capacity of the Group’s power plants increased
significantly, and the operating power plants recorded
remarkable growth in power generation capacities.
The proportion of power generation business revenue
and profit also increased considerably. Concurrently,
the Group continued to reduce the scale of its external
the Engineering, Procurement and Construction (EPC)
business, actively adjusted the structure of its power
generation assets, reduced its installed capacity in
curtailed regions, and optimised the quality of its
assets.

Regarding its power generation business, the Group
aimed to reduce LCOE. Through such measures as
the adoption of the latest wind turbine, multiple
times of optimisation of designs, and acceleration of
project construction, the Group effectively controlled
the power generation costs of its new power plants
and strived to reduce LCOE for new construction
projects. Through the application of the Group’s self-
developed energy internet product, the “POWER+"
system in its power plants, it realised dynamic remote
monitoring, reduced the failure rates and enhanced
the operation and maintenance of the power plants,
effectively ensured safe operation of power plants,
largely increased the power generation efficiency and
reduced LCOE for established power plants.

— RERR(E)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEBNWE DM

BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)

During the year, the Group performed goodwill
impairment review due to significant reduction in its
external EPC business. The Group also conducted a
comprehensive assessment of its historical accounts
receivable and made provision of RMB104,792,000
(2016: RMB32,960,000) for the goodwill impairment
and accounts receivable written-off, and recognised
the previous years’ EPC business settlement loss of
RMB84,339,000.

During the reporting period, the Group’s
revenue amounted to RMB1,035,967,000 (2016:
RMB1,785,166,000), decreased by 41.97% as
compared with the same period last year; profit
attributable to equity holders of the Group amounted
to RMB200,036,000 (2016: RMB457,815,000),
decreased by 56.31% as compared with the same
period last year. The basic earnings per share were
RMB2.33 cents (2016: RMB5.32 cents); and the fully
diluted earnings per share were RMB2.33 cents (2016:
RMB5.30 cents).

As at the end of the year, the net assets of the Group
amounted to RMB5,255,146,000 (31 December 2016:
RMB5,225,750,000) and its net assets per share
RMBO0.61 (2016: RMBO0.58).

(1) Significantly Increased Power Generation
Output, Improved Power Plant Efficiency,
and Stable and Safe Production

In the current year, the Group focuses on safe
production and strives to enhance the efficiency
of its power plants. With the application of the
“POWER+" system independently developed by
the Group, the Group increased the amount of
its power generated and reduced LCOE.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEENRE DN

BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)

(1

Significantly Increased Power Generation
Output, Improved Power Plant Efficiency,
and Stable and Safe Production (CONTINUED)

Attributable Power Generation Output
Growth; Significant Increase in Power
Generation of Wholly-owned Wind
Power Projects

In 2017, power generation output
attributable to the Group increased
steadily, an increase of 17.79% over
the previous year. The Group’s wholly-
owned and holding wind power plants
showed significant increase of 310.85%
in power generation compared to last
year. Mainly owing to the sale of its
Shaanxi Solar Power Plant, the Group’s
wholly-owned and holding solar power
plants saw a substantial decrease in its
installed operating capacity and a decline
in its solar power generation. During
the year, the Group’s share of power
generation from its joint ventures and
joint ownership enterprises grew by
6.07% over the previous year, benefiting
from reduced curtailment and improved
operating efficiency. Power generation
output attributable to the Group’s wind
power plants increased by 6.04% over the
previous year whereas that of solar power
rose by 7.66% from last year.

© RICIRE(E)

(=) BEXEBAERA SHAERE
5 RREERE(E)

REREEBER BHERE
EHREEXIEE M

017 E SEHEZZE
EBTHER BREFHEEK
17.79% - H - KEBER
TREEREEEREFK
1835 & 310.85% * BE K%
&% K5 e **WIEE&E
PRA ARG REE M E BB L H
NS N ERN N s
BETRE - AFE  ZHERN
REERMEEERRGE
EEAE R A EmES T
EEREFIERG607% - H
PRNEEREREES
BEFIRRE6.04%  KF5HE
BEMESEEEREFE
£7.66% °
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEBNWE DM

l. BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED) — - ¥XKBOEEE)
(1) Significantly Increased Power Generation (—) REEBRARBEFH SRHIERE
Output, Improved Power Plant Efficiency, BRZ24EEBE(E)

and Stable and Safe Production (CONTINUED)

i.  Attributable Power Generation Output 1 EBnZZELER BLEE
Growth; Significant Increase in Power HEZREEAXFEME)
Generation of Wholly-owned Wind
Power Projects (CONTINUED)

Attributable Power
Generation Output (GWh)

ERREE(ERK)
The Group's Invested The Group's Wholly-owned and
Power Plants Holding Power Plants
SEEERENER Hb: BE ZRER
Business
Segments and Change Change
Regions £BRRRES 2017 2016 rate 2017 2016 rate
20175 2016 #l% 20175 2016 & Bl
Wind Power RERES
Generation 1,997.17 1,335.39 49.56% 783.22 190.63 310.85%
Including: e
Northeastern BlES
China 269.73 245.56 9.84% — — —
Northern China 4R 430.02 374.06 14.96% — — —
Northwestern [iiplA8e
China 126.29 90.84 39.02% — — —
Eastern China EREH 457 47 288.71 58.46% 217.90 33.56 549.28%
Central Southern A& 1
China 563.59 324.84 73.50% 415.26 145.70 185.02%
Southwestern Fr
China 150.06 1138 1218.39% 150.06 1138 1218.39%
Solar Power AGHREE
Generation 450.29 742.41 -39.35% 432.16 725.57 -40.44%
Including: He
Northern China 4R 25.64 1203 113.17% 12.57 — —
Northwestern [iplA8e
China 63.89 376.00 -83.01% 63.89 376.00 -83.01%
Eastern China ERREH 59.31 56.42 5.13% 54.26 51.60 5.14%
Southwestern AR
China 285.59 275.78 3.56% 285.59 275.78 3.56%
Overseas MRS
Regions 15.85 22.18 -28.56% 15.85 22.18 -28.56%
Total &% 2,447.46 2,077.80 17.79% 1,215.38 916.20 32.65%
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEBNWE DM

BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)

(1

Significantly Increased Power Generation
Output, Improved Power Plant Efficiency,
and Stable and Safe Production (CONTINUED)

ii.

High Power Generation Efficiency
in Wholly-owned Power Plants;
Significant Improvement in Jointly-
owned Power Plants

By fully advancing the application of
the "POWER+" system, the operational
indicators of the Group’s invested power
plants have significantly improved.

In 2017, benefitting from the new high-
quality wind power projects, reduced
power curtailment and improved
operational efficiency, the weighted
average available hours of the wind
power plants invested by the Group have
increased significantly to 1,921 hours.
The weighted average available hours of
wholly-owned and holding wind power
plants was 2,072 hours, significantly higher
than the national average. The weighted
average available hours of solar power
plants invested by the Group was 1,367
hours, whereas that of the Group’s wholly-
owned and holding solar power plants was
1,313 hours.

= XBEEE)

(=)

BREXBARRRA EEXEE
B REEERE(E)

2 BETHRENES &8

ETHAEAZ

BiE 2 E#EPOWER+ ]| &
SIER  SEKENERE
BEEETHERS -

20176 XmNigEE
REIEEMEERE N ZE
MEEREH  EEEREFER
T /) [ R N S 25 I A
RFEEERA - EH1,921
N o Hep o JBE KRR E
B R 0 ¥ R A DR
B2,072/)0\ - BEERRE
BlFHKFE - EEKERFSE
P HE By K B3 BE B R INAE 15
A NEEAE1,367 /N6
Heh BEAREBRAGRESE
RN AN A
1,313 /N6 o

Weighted Average Available Hours
of Power Plants (Hour)
ERIMET IR ANE(NE)

The Group's Invested The Group’s Wholly-owned
Power Plants and Holding Power Plants
SESARENER Hi B ERER
Business Change Change
Segments BRI 2017 2016 rate 2017 2016 rate
2017% 2016 #lE | 2017F 20165 Blx
Average REFY
Available FR /NG
Hours of Wind
Power 1,921 1,692 13.53% 2,072 1,785 16.09%
Average NGRS
Available AR/
Hours of Solar
Power 1,367 1,432 -4.54% 1,313 1,422 -7.66%
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEBNWE DM

Il.  BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)

(1

Significantly Increased Power Generation

Output, Improved Power Plant Efficiency,
and Stable and Safe Production (CONTINUED)

ii.

High Power Generation Efficiency
in Wholly-owned Power Plants;
Significant Improvement in Jointly-
owned Power Plants (CONTINUED)

In 2017, by improving the Group’s
operation and maintenance level and
the promotion and application of the
"POWER+" system, the availability of the
wind turbines in the Group’s invested
wind power plants continued to increase,
reaching 97.19%, of which the availability
of the wind turbines in its wholly-owned
and holding wind power plants was
98.53%. The availability of the solar power
plants invested by the Group was 98.73%
whereas that of the Group’s wholly-
owned and holding solar power plants was
98.50%.

- EBEEE)

(=) BEXEBAERA SHAERE

Availability of Wind Turbines
and Solar Power Plants (%)
RERATIAE -
AEREERANAE(%)

=

2>

CREEEREGE)

BETHRENES BF
ETHAEAS ()

2017 FJZ  BBIRREEK
F K [POWER+ | 2 &t 9 #E &
EA - SEREFBERED
[ B i 4B B] R PR SRR B 1R
F #EF|97.19% © EH1E
& N 1 % 2 2 R 4E ] R A
& 598.53% c EEKEH
B RRHE /Y K 5 8E 3% B g ] FI
Fl#%98.73%  HHEE R
R A G B A A A XA
98.50% °

The Group’s Wholly-owned and
The Group's Invested Power Plants Holding Power Plants
SERERENER Hi BE ERER
Business Change Change
Segments BRI 2017 2016 rate 2017 2016 rate
2017% 2016 #lE | 2017F 20165 Blx
Availability of ~ EE#A
Wind Turbines ~ AIFIfI % 97.19% 96.14% 1.05% 98.53% 98.34% 0.20%
Availability of ~ KIBEEEM
Solar Power BEiEES
Plants 98.73% 98.89% -0.16% 98.50% 98.65% -0.14%
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEBNWE DM

BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)

(1

Significantly Increased Power Generation

Output, Improved Power Plant Efficiency,
and Stable and Safe Production (CONTINUED)

ii.

High Power Generation Efficiency
in Wholly-owned Power Plants;
Significant Improvement in Jointly-
owned Power Plants (CONTINUED)

In 2017, the average wind power
curtailment rate of the wind power plants
invested by the Group was 9.10%, which
was lower than the national average. The
average solar power curtailment rate of the
solar power plants invested by the Group
was 7.49%. The Group's wholly-owned
and holding wind power projects abounded
in southern China, which were areas with
no power curtailment. These projects

were not influenced by power curtailment

= XBEEE)

(=) BEXEBAERA SHAERE
B REEERE(E)

2 BETHERENES &
EEMBEEAZ(E)

20175 - SEERERFEA
BiERRSE®FHER
E9.10% ' KR =B F15
KFE EBBEFHRE
MAGEERFHEXE
7.49% ° JEE REREEIR
BEHMAEATREMRE

HEATRRELE -

problems.
Solar and Wind Power Curtailment Rates
of Power Plants (%)
BEEAELE(%)
The Group’s Wholly-owned and
The Group's Invested Power Plants Holding Power Plants
SESERENER Hi B ZRER
Business Change Change
Segments ERRA 2017 rate 2017 2016 rate
2017% 2016 % Bz 20175 2016 % Bz
Wind Power BEER X
Curtailment
Rate 9.10% 19.31% -10.21% 0.19% 0.50% -0.31%
Solar Power ABGRERE
Curtailment
Rate 7.49% 9.44% -1.95% 831% 9.88% -1.57%
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEBNWE DM

Il.  BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)

(1)

Significantly Increased Power Generation

Output, Improved Power Plant Efficiency,
and Stable and Safe Production (CONTINUED)

iii.

Average Feed-in Tariffs Decreased
Slightly; Tariffs of Wholly-owned
Projects Maintained at Relatively High
Levels

In 2017, impacted by the decreasing tariffs
for power transactions, the weighted
average feed-in tariff rate of wind power
plants invested by the Group decreased
slightly to RMB0.5582/kWh (including VAT)
(2016: RMB0.5636/kWh). For solar power
plants, the rate was RMB0.9698/kWh
(including VAT) (2016: RMB0.9703/kWh).
The weighted average feed-in tariff rate
of wind power from wind power plants
wholly-owned and holding by the Group
was RMBO0.5830/kWh (including VAT)
(2016: RMBO0.6074/kWh). For solar power
plants, the rate was RMB0.9357/kWh
(including VAT) (2016: RMB0.9509/kWh).

In 2017, the traded power of the Group's
wholly-owned and holding power plants
amounted to 171.29 million kWh,
accounting for 14.09%. Traded wind
power reached 63.74 million kWh, which
accounted for 8.14% of wholly-owned
and holding wind power generation and
the average reduction in wind power
tariffs was RMBO0.0275/kWh; traded solar
power amounted to 107.55 million kwh,
accounting for 24.89% of wholly-owned
and holding solar power generation, and
the average reduction in solar power tariffs
is RMB0.079/kWh.

- EBEEE)

(=) BEXBRERA SHURE
B REEERE(E)

3>

FY LEEABE T &
HEABARERE KT

20175 - IRHEEEE
TEREEE SERERE
& # 6y 2B BN AE 19k
HEEZKMTE AARE
0.5582 7t/ T FLBs (BB ER)
(20164 : AR#0.56367T,
FREE) KBFaes s g
FHEHEEEARY0.9698
TS TEREEEER)
(20164 : AR#0.97037T,
FEE) - EF - SEBEER
% B RE p1RE T E
BEEBAR¥K0.58307T,/ TR
B(EEEH)(20165F - A
R¥060747L TEE) -
AIGREBE MEFY ELRE
BARK09357 T,/ TR
(2 EH)Q016%F : AR
#0.9509 7T, FELBF) °

20174 - KEEE RZERE
BEXHSEER17,1298 TR
B (hEb B14.09% @ He o
BEX5E£63748 TR
B hBERZERREES
£/8.14%  REEEFH
fRig A AR 0.02757T,/F
FLBs ; KX HEE 10,755
BETRE WBAERER
HIREEEEM24.89% @ )
REBEHRBEAARE
0.0797C/ FEB o
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEENRE DN

BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)

(1

Significantly Increased Power Generation

Output,

Improved Power Plant Efficiency,

and Stable and Safe Production (CONTINUED)

iv.

Income of Wholly-owned Power Plants
Increased; Efficiency of Jointly-owned
Power Plants Improved

In 2017, the Group's wholly-owned and
holding power plants achieved a total
income of RMB717,548,000 (2016:
RMB674,032,000), an increase of 6.46%
over the same period last year, accounting
for 69.27% of the Group’s revenue (the
same period of 2016: 37.75%).

During the year, the Group's wholly-
owned and holding power plants achieved
a total net profit of RMB233,871,000,
and the Group shared net profits totalling
RMB127,186,000 from its joint ventures

and jointly-owned enterprises.

In the current year, the Group adjusted the
assets structure of its power plants and
sold the Shaanxi Yulin Solar Power Plant,
which was subject to the risk of power
curtailment. As a result, the installed
capacity, revenue and net profit of the
Group’s wholly-owned solar power plants
declined.

(=) BEXEBRERHA

© RICIRE(E)

ERMEE

B REEERE(E)

BEEMUALEN SHE
B A=

2017 S EH B E &
BEREERRKAARE

717,548,000 70 (2016 4F
ARM674,032,00070) @ &
EFREHEE646%  (HE
E U A #69.27% (2016 4F
FHA : 37.75%) °

REE SEBE RZE]
@ﬁAEﬁ%ﬂﬂAE%
233,871,000t EEH F
e NFREEREFE
AR 127,186,000 7T °

AEE SEHETEREE
BEAR HEFERER
i B B3R 78 il MK 5 BE B IR

BYARFRBEKNGEE
BEHRBE TR - WAFF
P INE
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BEEBNWE DM

Il.  BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)

(1)

(2)

Significantly Increased Power Generation
Output, Improved Power Plant Efficiency,
and Stable and Safe Production (CONTINUED)

iv. Income of Wholly-owned Power Plants
Increased; Efficiency of Jointly-owned
Power Plants Improved (CONTINUED)

= XBEEE)

(=) BEXBRERA SHURE

B REEERE(E)

BEEMUALEN SHE
BHKmAZEE)

4.

Revenue and Net Profit of Power Plants (RMB)
ERUARFEINBARE 7

Change
2017 2016 rate
2017 F 2016 F SR
Revenues of BEREZERER
Wholly-owned LON
and Holding
Power Plants 717,548,000 674,032,000 6.46%
Including: Hr
Wind Power s 366,295,000 88,100,000 315.77%
Solar Power NG 351,253,000 585,932,000 -40.05%
Net Profit of BEREZERER
Wholly-owned R
and Holding
Power Plants 233,871,000 252,345,000 -7.32%
Including: Hr
Wind Power s 145,630,000 27,079,000 437.79%
Solar Power NCEE 88,241,000 225,266,000 -60.83%
Net Profit of EHEBER
Jointly-invested FERE
Power Plants 127,186,000 92,811,000 37.04%
Including: Er o
Wind Power R E 121,222,000 86,894,000 39.51%
Solar Power NI 5,964,000 5,917,000 0.79%

Investment and Construction of Power
Plants

In 2017, the Group increased the construction
scale of its wholly-owned power plants. The
invested power plants were mainly high-quality
wind power plants in regions with no power
curtailment in southern China. The Group’s
installed capacity increased and assets quality
improved significantly. This year, the Group
effectively controlled the construction costs
of new power plants, increased the amount
of power generation, adopted the latest wind
turbine, optimised designs and accelerated
project construction, whereby the Group
achieved its goals of reducing LCOE, and readied
itself for the arrival of the era of grid parity.

(Z) SRRERER

2017 KEMKBE EMER
HE - FIREEHEIERM TR
BEERFENELIRER  KEKEA
BiER BEHEKNENE - AF

B SEEBRAZEE - &1
RET  IRIAE EREEE - AR

ZHFEERMEE  REEEE
ZRTREEEXRANEE - &S
BFELWSRNDK My T E
1o
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEENRE DN

BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)

Investment and Construction of Power
Plants (CONTINUED)

Increase Scales of Power Plant
Investment and Construction, Focus on
investing Wholly-owned Wind Projects

During the year, the total installed capacity
of the Group’s invested power plants was
1,006 MW (2016: 816 MW), all of which
were wholly-owned projects. Among them,
7 continued construction projects, with
an installed capacity of 308 MW; 15 new
construction projects were started with an
installed capacity of 698 MW. They also
included 19 wind power plants with an
installed capacity of 951MW and 3 solar
power plants with an installed capacity of
55MW.

During the year, the Group added a total
of 11 wind power and solar power plants
into operation, with a total installed
capacity of 439 MW (2016: 470 MW), all
of which were wholly-owned projects. They
also included 8 wind power plants with an
installed capacity of 384MW, all located in
southern China with no power curtailment,
and 3 solar power plants with an installed
capacity of 55MW.

As of the end of the year, the Group
owned shares in 64 grid-connected wind
power and solar power plants with a total
installed capacity of 2,718 MW (2016:
2,547 MW) and an attributable installed
capacity of 1,806 MW. Among them, 46
were wind power plants with an installed
capacity of 2,387 MW (2016: 2,053 MW),
an attributable capacity of 1,493 MW, and
18 solar power plants with an installed
capacity of 331 MW (2016: 494 MW) and
an attributable installed capacity of 313
MW.

© RICIRE(E)

(Z) EmRERER(E)

1

EMRENERREEZM -
BEREEAABFEERE
7

AFE EEREEHRME
# R E A £1,006MW
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RNEE FEHEFIZIE
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MR E 1,806MW o EFREER
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWRIN

Il.  BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)

(2) Investment and Construction of Power

Plants (CONTINUED)

Increase Scales of Power Plant
Investment and Construction, Focus on
investing Wholly-owned Wind Projects
(CONTINUED)

As of the end of the year, the Group
had 33 wholly-owned and holding grid-
connected wind power and solar power
plants with a total installed capacity of
1,140MW. They also included 17 wind
power plants with an installed capacity of
838MW and 16 solar power plants with an
installed capacity of 302MW.

- EBEEE)

(Z) EmRERER(E)

1

EMRENERRELEZM -
BERMERAABEARE
EXE)

HEAFR  AEEBERE
BHAIBHHBBRE RS
MAGRER A%
1,140MW ° H /1 [& & B 17
- REAE838MW : K5
Bt T R16fE - H B A2
302MW ©

ol =
A=

The Attributable Installed Capacity of Power Plants (MW)

BEEREHAE(MW)
The Group's Wholly-owned and Holding
The Group's Invested Power Plants Power Plants
SERERENZH 2o BE - ERER

Business Segments Change Change

and Regions  ¥HHRAREH 2017 2016 rate 2017 2016 rate

20175 20165 4(%:3 0175 20165 lE

Installed Wind BELHRE

Power Capacity 1,493 1,125 32.80% 838 454 84.58%
Including: L
Northeastern China ~ EJtE 4] 162 162 0.00% - - -
Northern China R 186 186 0.00% — — —
Northwestern China T3t @J5 103 103 0.00% - - -
Eastern China ERRY 248 215 15.31% 130 82 58.54%
Central Southern  FEES

China 714 378 88.82% 628 292 115.07%
Southwestern China FiEI&SS, 80 80 0.00% 80 80 0.00%
Installed Solar ABHERAE

Power Capacity 313 476 -34.27% 302 465 -35.06%
Including: B
Northern China 2Rl 26 6 310.95% 20 — —
Northwestern China it & 9 227 -96.04% 9 227 -96.04%
Eastern China ERE 44 44 0.00% 40 40 0.00%
Southwestern China FE RS, 215 180 19.44% 215 180 19.44%
Overseas Regions ~ JE5MEf] 18 18 0.00% 18 18 0.00%
Total a3t 1,806 1,601 12.86% 1,140 919 24.02%
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEBNWE DM

BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)

(2) Investment and Construction of Power
Plants (CONTINUED)

ii.

Pre-Development Focus on Regions
without Power Curtailment, and

Reserve Abundant Resources

In 2017, the Group actively improved its
development deployment, improved the
development network and continued to
enhance its development capabilities. In
the areas without power curtailment in
southern China, the Group maintained its
competitive advantages in development,
and developed projects through various
means. At the same time, the Group is still
increasing its resource reserves in order
to maintain its sustainable development
strength and prepare for the arrival of the
era of grid parity.

In the “2017 Wind Power Development
and Construction Plan” issued by the
provincial energy bureaus, the Group has a
total of 16 wind power projects (a total of
885 MW) listed in the annual development
and construction plan, of which 14 wind
power projects (a total of 735MW) have
been approved. The Group also has
approved/registered 2 solar projects (50MW
in total). All of them were located in
regions with good grid access conditions
and without power curtailment.
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Il.  BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)

(2)

(3)

Investment and Construction of Power
Plants (CONTINUED)

ii. Pre-Development Focus on Regions
without Curtailment, and Reserve
Abundant Resources (CONTINUED)

During the year, the Group signed
contracts for wind resource of 2,650MW
and solar energy resource of 300MW. The
Group closely followed the development
of renewable energy technologies,
utilises advanced equipment such as
high anemometer towers and laser
anemometers to continuously track and
evaluate the wind resources it held,
selected wind resources with the best
economic benefits under the current
technology and cost levels for development
and construction. As of the end of the
year, the Group's wind power resources
reserve amounted to over 28GW and solar
power resources reserve amounted to
8GW, which provided assurance for the
Group’s sustainable development.

The Engineering, Procurement and
Construction (EPC)

In order to implement its strategic
transformation, in 2017, the Group actively
reduced the scale of its external EPC business,
resulting in a significant drop in revenue and
profit from the EPC segment. During the year,
the Group undertook 1 external EPC contracting
project of 20MW. The project has been
completed and put into production.

During the year, the Group’s subsidiary Concord
Power Consulting & Design (Beijing) Corp., Ltd.
("Design Company”) has been publicly listed
since 9 May, 2017 on the National Equities
Exchange and Quotations, where it is known
“Concord Power”, with stock code 871484.
Concord Power completed 202 wind (solar)
resource assessments and technical advisory
reports, 56 feasibility study reports, 25 microsite
selection reports, 11 preliminary designs, 10
construction drawing designs and 10 record
drawings.

— EBEEAE)
(=) ERRERER(E)
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BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)

(3)

(4)

The Engineering, Procurement and
Construction (EPC) (CONTINUED)

During the year, the Group's affiliated design
companies, equipment supply companies and
engineering companies realised a total revenue

of RMB235,817,000 (2016: RMB1,043,685,000).

Other Businesses

While focusing on its core power generation
business, the Group relied on its investments
in the renewable energy industry to carry
out energy internet business, operation and
maintenance, and financial leasing services,
applying emerging information technologies
such as big data, internet of things, and artificial
intelligence to such areas as investment,
construction, operation and maintenance of its
power plants, whereby achieving some results.

i Research and Development of Energy
Internet Technology

In 2017, the Group continued to
vigorously develop its energy internet
business, introduced talents, established

a professional development team and
increased product development and
application efforts and achieved good
results in the operation of the Group’'s
power plants.

On 24 February, the Group released the
industry-leading energy internet cloud
platform “POWER+1.0",
applied in depth in all of the Group's

which has been

wholly-owned wind power plants and
solar power plants. It covers the Group's
19 wind power plants and 16 solar power
stations (including US power stations) with
a cumulative total installed capacity of
1,238 MW.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)

(4)

Other Businesses (CONTINUED)

i.

Research and Development of Energy
Internet Technology (CONTINUED)

In the wind power plants, through the
diagnostic analysis by the "POWER+"
platform of the operational data of the
wind turbines, the sub-health status of
multiple wind turbines with varying degrees
of insufficient power was successfully
diagnosed. Through online diagnosis
and guidance to the on-site operation
and maintenance personnel for early
restoration, the power generation of these
wind turbines increased more than 1%
on average. In the solar power stations,
the "POWER+"'s dust early-warning
model and application of the inefficient
string diagnosis algorithm guide on-site
personnel in performing the solar power
plant cleaning and handling abnormal
power generation units in a cost-effective
and timely manner; as a result, the power

generation capacity is improved.

In 2017, the Group’s "POWER+" products
also received industry recognitions. At
the 2nd China International Energy
Internet Summit held on April 27-28,
"POWER+" products won the “Best
Product Breakthrough of the Year”; at the
2nd Energy Internet “the Belt and Road”
decision-maker summit held on 21-22
September, “POWER+" products won the
“Energy Internet Cloud Platform Innovation
Award of the Year”.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)

(4)

Other Businesses (CONTINUED)

ii.

Operation and Maintenance of Power
Plants

In 2017, the Group’s subsidiary Beijing
Century Concord Operation and
Maintenance Co., Ltd. (“Concord O&M")
took advantage of energy internet
technology to operate intelligently and
strived to become a leading domestic
and internationally advanced professional
operation and maintenance company.
With the Group’s “"POWER+" products
and advanced operation and maintenance,
Concord O&M has become the only
professional domestic company specialising
in wind power and solar industry that
offers products and services including
consultation, operation, maintenance,
overhaul, spare parts and assets
management. The Group can provide
services such as overall operation and
maintenance, preventive testing, technical
renovation and overhaul, wind power
forecasting, etc., for power plants within
or outside the Group. They included
maintenance and inspection services for
wind turbine manufacturers during the
warranty period. By taking advantage
of its "POWER+" products, the Group
actively builds a cloud-based operation
and maintenance model, which provides
clients with centralised management,
personalised and precise operation as well
as maintenance services unattended or

less-attended.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)

(4)

Other Businesses (CONTINUED)

ii.

Operation and Maintenance of Power
Plants (CONTINUED)

During the year, Concord O&M successfully
passed the new standard certification
of the “Three-standard System?”,
which encompasses quality, health and
environmental protection. On December
15, 2017, it obtained the TUV wind turbine
operation and maintenance capability
certification from Germany. Concord O&M
became the first third-party independent
operation and maintenance company that
has passed TUV International certification.

During the year, Concord O&M was in
charge of a total of 61 wind power and
solar power plants’ overall operation
and maintenance and signed 32 service
contracts in areas such as scheduled
inspection, preventive tests, technical
renovation and overhaul and spare parts
sales.

In 2017, Concord O&M actively expanded
its operation and maintenance service
business and received favourable comments
from users and was awarded the first prize
of the “Top Ten Wind Power Operation
and Maintenance Enterprise of 2017".

During the year, other business segments
contributed RMB82,602,000 to the Group
(2016: RMB67,449,000).
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION, COMPLIANCE
AND SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

(1

Environmental Protection

In addition to financial performance, the Group
believed that high-standard corporate social
responsibility is of significance in building a
positive relationship between an enterprise and
society, motivating its employees and achieving
sustainable return for the Group. The Group is
committed to making positive contributions to
the environment and communities where the
Group operates and its stakeholders reside.

The Group's renewable energy power generation
projects such as wind power and solar power
generation ones, focus on the investments in
environmental protection and the conservation
of water and soil. Prior to the commencement
of such projects, the approvals for the
environmental protection and conservation of
water and soil are required, while the projects
are put into production, they are subject to
the inspection and acceptance regarding the
environmental protection and conservation
of water and soil by the relevant government
regulators. The Group also strives to maintain
sustainable development for the environment
as well as for the human race, and commits
to its responsibilities for improving the energy
structure, mitigating air pollution and reducing
greenhouse gas emissions and haze.

This year, the electricity generation by the
Group’s invested wind power and solar power
plants achieved larger proportion of reduction
in carbon dioxide, sulphur dioxide, and nitrogen
oxide emissions compared with conventional
power plants. Compared with coal-fired thermal
power, the Group has achieved standard coal
and water conservation. The reduction in
pollutants contributed to the reduction in PM10

and PM2.5 emissions and smog.
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I1l. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION, COMPLIANCE
AND SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CONTINUED)

(1

(2)

(3)

Environmental Protection (CONTINUED)

CRERE - SRARMEEFE)

(=) REREE)

Emissions Reduction by Power Plants

ERR R
Accumulated
2017 Amount
Emissions Reduction

Indicators AR 2017 F S5TE
CO2 (kilotons) CO2 (Fma) 3,480 20,160
SO2 (tons) SO2 (M§) 36,928 203,446
NOX (tons) NOX (Mg ) 3,276 18,029

Standard Coal Saving BAIR B (F )
(kilotons) 1,250 6,910
Water Saving (kilotons) N4 K (FHE) 10,450 57,530

Compliance

During the year, to the best of management’s
belief, the Group has complied with the relevant
standards, laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on its business, management

and labour requirements.

Community Responsibility

The Group actively fulfilled its social
responsibilities and devoted itself to public
welfare undertakings, focusing on the
development of public welfare undertakings

such as poverty alleviation and education.
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION, COMPLIANCE
AND SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CONTINUED)

(3)

Community Responsibility (CONTINUED)

The Group actively implements poverty
alleviation work in power plant investment
areas, combines measures such as poverty
alleviation through projects, and assists local
poverty reduction and economic development
through various means. In the project in Yushan,
Hubei Province, the Group cooperated with the
Bureau of Land and Resources of Xiangzhou
District in conducting poverty alleviation work
in Caohe Village, Chenghe Town, Xiangzhou
District, and donated money to the village for
the construction of the village's infrastructure
and improvement of people’s production and
life. The Group’s 20MW solar poverty alleviation
project in Hebei Province helps 666 local people
living in poverty by providing each person
RMB3,000 per year and contributes RMB1.998
million to poverty relief funds each year.

To jointly facilitate national renewable energy
education, the Group subsidised professional
education in universities, donated education
and public infrastructure where the projects
are located, and actively participated in
community activities. The Group has established
a scholarship in the School of Renewable Energy,
North China Electric Power University, to reward
outstanding students with excellent conduct,
to help students whose families suffer from
financial difficulties to complete their studies, to
reward students with outstanding performance
in technological innovation, invention and
manufacturing, to reward outstanding
teachers and management staff, and to inspire
outstanding undergraduates to further their
studies. In total, 1,110 people have benefited
from the scholarship. Yanyuan Century Concord
Solar Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of the Group,
provided a donation to a village elementary
school at Beishan Village, Dahe Town, Yanyuan
County, Liangshan Prefecture in Sichuan
Province.
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Ill. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION, COMPLIANCE
AND SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CONTINUED)

(4)

Customer and Supplier Relationships

During the year, the Group maintained a good
relationship with customers and suppliers and

there was no major dispute.

The Group’s 5 largest customers accounted for
55% of the Group’s total sales for the year,
including 19% from the largest customer. The

largest customer is Yunnan Power Grid Co., Ltd.

The Group’s 5 largest suppliers accounted
for 70% of the Group’s total procurement
amount for the year, including 39% from the
largest supplier. The largest supplier is Xinjiang
Goldwind Science & Technology Co., Ltd. It
supplies wind turbine equipment for some of the
wind power projects invested or EPC contracted
by the Group.

IV. HUMAN RESOURCES

(1

Corporate Employees

As of 31 December 2017, the Group had
1,312 full-time employees (31 December 2016:
1,183), 166 of whom worked at the Group's
headquarters, 387 in project development and
management, 66 in engineering consultancy,
design, engineering procurement and
construction (EPC) and 693 in operation and

maintenance.

& SRARMEEEHE)

(M) BEFRHEERE

AEE  AKBETFRHERE
FRUFBE LEEAFE -

REE  AEBMAREF ZHER
HAREREZBIHERS5%  Hf
EEEEAEFHE19% &AF
FREESEMARALAR -

REE  AEBRARHER 2 KB
BEAFREZBRBEION  H
TEEREAHEEREE39% - &
AHERE BB AMZENER
NE ZRARAEELEHEPC
AR A REREHEREZH
R e

s ABER

(=) ¥BET

H=2017F12A318 A& H
HmBE1,312%2MEE (2016 12
A31H :1,183%) Eb&£EHE
HAE166 A HEMHE  -EHEE®
387 A - RET - REKEMHE -
ER(EPC) AB66 A BITHE
693 A ©

2017 ANNUAL REPORT

2017 £ 1§ 33



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEENRE DN

IV. HUMAN RESOURCES (CONTINUED) S ABERE)
(2) Employees’ Development (=) BT%RE
The Group always upholds its core values of EEBKRFE [LAABZR - BIEE
“people-orientation, value creation, striving for B Bk« MBEE | %0
excellence, and harmonious development”. We BHE RMAEEIXBEE (B
respect and are grateful to every employee for THEFREREETRRFEHHFE - I
their hard work in the new energy business and BHAEERHERBIN T IEREME
strive to provide them with a good working ERRETYE  #MBIRE THED
environment and a broad development platform EHHRBRE - ANEBEZAEER
so as to achieve the common development of TS EEENER - R PIEE S
employees and enterprises. Human resources IWABE - 2EWHA iﬁ?ﬂ?\%ﬁ’ﬂ
are the main force of the Group’s sustainable Ba BEEsE . gEFes 10
development. We have firmly established the SRR BEEREDE -
concept of sustainable development which is
people-oriented and fully coordinated. Aside
from that, we established platforms, inspired
positive energy, enhanced cohesion and built a
happy enterprise.
The Group pays attention to the growth and EEHETIE TR EMERE - #14
development of its employees. It provides AEBECFEARE S - IBEHAE
different career development paths and MR EERCNEFRE 81
promotion channels for different positions and EIEEIRE - Hitsa R EEmE%
individual capabilities. Employees can choose EimE
management, technical and professional
development channels.
(3) Employee’s Training (=) 8T

In order to help the development and promotion ETEHHETHREEESF » st
of employees, different curricula are designed EIRE . I:PEN:IE/\; CIBEE
for the management, middle managers, backup IBEpEl . 2 B TR NE A ERIR 62
management cadres, and new employees. Every % BEKREBEFEEIIEEHES
year, a variety of training courses are conducted BALEFIERTE o AN EETERE
based on an annual training plan. In addition, BB EMB G - B EFRRIE
the Group focuses on building an internal team FER1E - TEBEHE T ARE
of part-time instructors, developing training BIRERT{E -
courses independently and is mainly responsible
for the induction of new employee induction
training.
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V.

HUMAN RESOURCES (CONTINUED)

(3)

(4)

Employee’s Training (CONTINUED)

In 2017, the Group organised more than 20
training sessions for its mid-level and senior level
managers, backup talents and new employees
totalling more than 200 participants. The
training content covers modern management
knowledge, professionalism, leadership,
communication skills, execution capabilities,
team building, etc. The average per capita
training time of the Group’s employees is 72
hours, an increase of 4 hours compared with
2016.

Health and Safety

The Group places high importance on its social
responsibility and pays attention to employees’
safety, health and work capability improvements.
Health inspections are organised annually for
employees. The Group has set up a number of
sports and interest clubs and built fitness and
sports facilities for its the employees. Sports
events such as walking activities are organised

regularly.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As of 31 December 2017, the Group held cash and

cash equivalents of approximately RMB1,110,803,000
(31 December 2016: RMB1,891,277,000); the gearing
ratio was 64.51% (31 December 2016: 63.56%),

the balance of bank loans and other borrowings of
the Group was RMB5,497,520,000 (31 December

2016: RMB3,426,660,000), and the Group’'s net
assets were RMB5,255,146,000 (31 December 2016:
RMBS5,225,750,000).
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V.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES
(CONTINUED)

(1

(2)

(3)

Charge of Assets

As of 31 December 2017, the equipment of the
Group was pledged as security for outstanding
loan amount of RMB2,054,524,000 (31
December 2016: RMB781,150,000).

Contingent Liability

As at 31 December 2017, the Group has
pledged its 49% equity interest in Erlianhaote
Changfeng Century Concord Wind Power
Exploiture Co., Ltd. (“Erlian”), with the total
value of its registered capital of approximately
RMB37,240,000 (31 2016:
RMB37,240,000). The outstanding balance of
the pledged banking facilities of Erlian as at
31 December 2017 was RMB42,918,000 (31
December 2016: RMB53,941,000). Save for the

information as mentioned above, the Group did

December

not have any significant contingent liabilities as
at 31 December 2017.

Commitments

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had
capital commitments of RMB1,960,602,000 (31
December 2016: RMB2,450,447,000), which
were not accounted in the financial statements.
The amount was mainly the capital committed to
joint ventures and associates that contracted but
not provided of RMB 105,050,000 (31 December
2016: RMB185,049,000), and capital committed
but unpaid for payment of equipment purchased
of RMB1,855,552,000 (31 December 2016:
RMB2,265,398,000) by the subsidiaries.
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VI. RISK FACTORS AND RISK MANAGEMENT

(1)

(2)

Risks Associated with Policies

Wind and solar energy companies are largely
dependent on the policies of the state and the
industry, laws and regulations and incentive
schemes. Changes of policies, laws and
regulations with respect to the power grid
industry have a great impact on the wind and
solar power enterprises. In recent years, the
government introduced a series of policies
and measures to protect and support the
development of new energy industries and
the conditions for connection to the grid are
improving gradually. However, the problem
of energy waste caused by the curtailment of
wind power and solar power is still negatively
affecting the industry’s development. The
provinces (cities and autonomous regions) may
also promulgate regional policies for power tariff
settlement. The risk of changes in various policy
factors requires the Group to closely follow
the policy orientation, strengthen its policy
judgement, and make forward-looking estimates
of possible unfavourable factors, formulate
countermeasures to reduce risks and minimise
the risks associated with changes in policy
factors.

Risks Associated with Climate

The annual fluctuation of wind and solar
resources is the primary climatic risk that is faced
by the wind power and solar power industry.
With a vast territory, there are great variations in
the factors in different regions that affect their
climates, such that different regions experience
different climatic characteristics during a same
period of time. In addition, extreme weather
conditions such as typhoon, freezing, strong
sandstorm, haze, and lightning strikes will bring
greater risks to wind power and solar power
generation companies.
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VI. RISK FACTORS AND RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

(2)

(3)

Risks Associated with Climate (CONTINUED)

In response to the risks brought about by
climate, the Group has already completed wind
power and solar power generation projects in 15
provinces (cities and autonomous regions) which
are in production. We will continue to optimise
the distribution to further counteract the
impact caused by climatic risks. The Company
will increase scientific research and improve
design standards in terms of type selection,
development path program, etc., and fully assess
and respond to the impact of climate factors on
the safety and effectiveness of power plants.

Risks Associated to Power Grids

The existence of wind and solar power
curtailments in some areas is the result of the
impact of a number of factors, including the
fact that the on-grid power output of wind
power and solar power plants is dependable
on the whole society’s electricity consumption,
the situation of conventional power generation,
as well as the layout structure of the power
grids. The Group will continue to research on
the characteristics of operation and methods of
consumption for wind power and solar power
and make good judgements on the trend of
policy changes, so as to take advantage of
government policies to mitigate the problems of
power curtailment. The Group will proactively
communicate with the government and grid
companies, and take the initiative to capture
market share in power generation. Internally,
we will strengthen production and operation
management, optimise means of operation,
improve availability by arranging for proper
inspection and maintenance of equipment, so as

to minimise downtime.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEBNWE DM

VI. RISK FACTORS AND RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

(4)

(5)

Interest Rate Risks

The Group is principally engaged in domestic
investment in wind power and solar power
plants, which requires enormous capital
expenditure and has relatively high demand
for borrowed funds. Changes in interest rates
will certainly have an impact to the Group’s
cost of capital. With sound performance and
credibility, a stable debt structure and diversified
financing channels, the Group has consistently
enjoyed financing interest rates that are lower
than the average level of our peers. The Group
will continuously pay attention to the financing
market, expand the financing channels, bring
forth new financing products and optimise
capital structure to effectively prevent the

interest rate risk.

Exchange Rate Risks

The Group’s business is primarily located in
mainland China with most of its revenue and
expenses denominated in Renminbi. The Group
also has a small portion of its investments
overseas and loans denominated in foreign
currencies. Fluctuations in Renminbi exchange
rate will result in foreign exchange losses or
gains from the Group's overseas business.
The Group will pay active attention to the
fluctuations of exchange rates and take effective

measures to prevent exchange rate risks.

A BREEREBREEE)

()

(&)

FRER

AEETZREPERFEARE - K
[GaeEwRE  FE—ENELRH
X HEEESFERER 0 MEH
Bl AREESRAEE—
ENRE  AEEEENEEBR
Rif BEERRE REEES
7ot MENEX—AERRTEF
EKAE - By - AEERISERT
REMS  RBEEE - 8l
BEM  BLEXRER AL
MR o

EEmB

AEBEXBEZERNPEAM
BAR WA~ THIAARES
B - "EEFELEBIMIEMIN
BEF - ARBEZXNEHEHA
SEINEEBELELBRAER
& o AEERRRRTERE
BRFARERRERE

2017 ANNUAL REPORT

2017 £ 1§ 39



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEENRE DN

VIl. PROSPECTS +. FERE
In recent years, China’s renewable energy industry EER - PR A BARERTEZERE D
has developed rapidly and technological advance R RMTE TR E - Al AR RS
has progressed by leaps and bounds. The cost of BERAESFEE TR BF HHKIE
renewable energy generation will continue to fall 2 REESE AR B 20 2k # B
and become increasingly competitive. The trend of O E—HEAEAKREEEMRNBESE
renewable energy replacing traditional fossil energy is R o
becoming more and more obvious, and this field will
have enormous room for development in the future.
We believe that China will continue to promote the KPEHEEPEBESHSE HE4 K
reform of the power system, accelerate the pilot work B R HEEEERNEESRNESE T
of incremental power distribution reforms, and further VB E—BIEATHITEIERL SIEE
expand the scale of power market transaction. The TFEHITHEEORFHE - BRI M
electricity industry will usher in new opportunities. At EETERSOME - BAEIEE BwEaL
present, in areas with higher benchmark feed-in tariff MR D LIRSS - ik R B IR e it
in the south, the reliance on subsidies for wind power W@ METRSE  REFELHD
projects has been weakening. In areas with better 42 0] LA B B 0T 8 6B o [s;f%ﬁ%
northern wind resources, if without curtailment, grid KAK T A REE HEEe
parity for wind power can readily carry good economic FHER AIEERERKEE I mTE
benefits. With the decrease in LCOE, grid parity for HENAETHEE R PR EIRES M3
renewable energy will be gradually realised, and B o
renewable energy can rely on its own competitiveness
to achieve advantageous development in market-
oriented transactions.
In recent years, with the continuous improvement HER  FEEEBRT HHTEIRF - A
of the Group’s strength, and the implementation of LEBBEELEE HERQUERE
a series of measures such as optimising the Group's —ZYEENER  EEBEEMIZRS
assets structure and transforming its business model, MEBARETWIES  BEEEBEEN
the installed capacities of the Group’s wholly-owned = KEE . £EFFF PR EEN
and holding power plants have been continuously FPCERBEEN TR IEWEITET T&
on the increase, and the asset quality has improved e EN EECBRERS SR R
significantly. During the year, the Group’s goodwill SRR T B RS EEA o EFE AR BARER
acquired over the years and the accumulated non- BN EEN D KEBMEERZE
performing accounts receivables of its EPC business EHEMEHEE - Bt - BREAESH
were written off. At this point, the Group has shaken MO LA T de2) -
away its historical burden and successfully completed
its strategic transformation. The Group will rely on
the investment income of its power plants to achieve
a healthy rolling development as an investor in the
renewable energy field. To this end, we will strive to
achieve the following:
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BEEENRE DN

VIl

PROSPECTS (CONTINUED)

Focus on the Main Business of Power
Generation, Consolidate the Transformation
Results, Actively Invest in Wind Power

Projects, and Expand the Installed Capacities

It is necessary to seize the opportunity period
before renewable energy is grid parity in 2020
to vigorously invest in and develop wind power
projects in southern regions with no power
curtailment, increase the investment and
construction scales of wind power projects in
areas with low impact on electricity tariffs. With
good pre-development and project preparation
work, we will accelerate the progress of project
construction, ensure project power generation
and achieve rapid growth in installed capacity.
Over the next three years, the Group aims to
add 500MW of net installed capacity annually, in
order to realise rapid increase in its attributable

capacity.

Pursue the Lowest LCOE; Welcome the
Arrival of the Era of Grid Parity with a
Positive Attitude

It is necessary to regard the lowest LCOE as the
Group’s core competitiveness, in order to adapt
to the coming era of grid parity for renewable
energy. It is necessary to actively track and apply
new technologies, new wind turbine types,
and new processes in the construction of the
Group's invested projects and build high-quality,
high-efficiency power plants. It is necessary
to promote the application of energy internet
in the production of power plants, implement
refined management, reduce production
and management costs, increase equipment
availability and increase power generation

output.
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BEEBNWE DM

VIl.

PROSPECTS (CONTINUED)

Actively Develop Energy Internet Business
and Use Technological Means to Promote
the Industrial Revolution in the Field of

Power Plant Operation

We must increase investment in the field of
energy internet, attract talents, and establish
a world-class team. We will continue to
promote the development and application of
the “"POWER+" products, extensively apply
energy internet technologies to various tasks
such as safe production management, power
plant operation and maintenance and power
plant design, improve the effectiveness of our
power plants through accurate operation and
maintenance, error prediction and equipment
defect diagnosis. Efforts should be made to
promote the centralised management of our
power plants and minimise required personnel
in order to reduce the operating costs of our

power plants.

Keep up with the Pace of Our Power System
Reform and Plan for the Future

We must keep up with the pace of our power
system reform, track all relevant policies of the
country, grasp the opportunities created by the
reform of the power market, and realise the
continuous development of the Group in the
renewable energy field. It is necessary to actively
participate in the market of green electricity
certificate as well as in the construction of
a carbon market, and properly develop our
distribution network business and electricity
distribution business.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEENRE DN

VIl

PROSPECTS (CONTINUED)

5.

Unswervingly and Vigorously Maintain

Safety in Production

We must firmly implement an accountability
system for safe production, remove all
potential safety hazards, conduct technological
transformation and eliminate deficiencies. It
is necessary to prepare for emergencies and
adverse weather in advance, and ensure that the
Group maintains a stable environment for safe

production.

In 2018, the Group will further accumulate its
strength, focus on its main business of power
generation, respond timely to various changes
and challenges, achieve rapid growth in the
scale and efficiency of its main business, create
benefits for shareholders, produce more clean
energy for the society and strive to contribute to
the monumental accomplishment of the mankind

in replacing fossil fuels with renewable energies.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERSEEEAEBNBEAER

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Liu Shunxing, aged 56, joined the Group in 2007. He
has become the Chairman of the Company since June 2009.
He is also a director of various subsidiaries of the Group.
Mr. Liu holds a Bachelor degree of Electricity Generation
from Tianjin University and a Master degree of Energy
Source Economy Management from the Management
College of Harbin Institute of Technology EMBA. Mr. Liu is
the vice president of China Energy Research Institute and an
executive director of China Energy Council. He was formerly
the Vice CEO of China Energy Conservation Investment

Corporation for eight years.

Ms. Liu Jianhong, aged 49, joined the Group in 2007. She
is the Vice Chairperson of the Company in January 2016.
She is also a director of various subsidiaries of the Group.
Ms. Liu holds her Master degree from the Law School
of Renmin University of China and an EMBA from China
Europe International Business School. She was the Chief
Legal Officer of China Energy Conservation Investment

Corporation.

Mr. Yu Wenzhou, aged 53, joined the Group in 2009. He
is the Chief Executive Officer (“the CEQ") of the Company
in January 2016. He is also a director of various subsidiaries
of the Group. He holds a Bachelor degree in statistics and a
Master degree in finance from Renmin University of China
and a Ph. D degree of Engineering Management from Xi’
an University of Technology. Mr. Yu once worked in State
Economic & Trade Commission, State Power Management
Commission and China Shenhua-Guohua Energy Investment
Ltd.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERSEEEAEBNBEAER

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Mr. Niu Wenhui, aged 47, joined the Group in 2010. He is
the Chief Financial Officer of the Company and has become
an Executive Director of the Company since January 2017.
He holds a Master Degree in Business Administration of
Beihang University. He had served as vice president of
China Ruilian Industrial Group and Chief Financial Officer of

Rainbow Group Shenzhen Branch.

Mr. Gui Kai, aged 59, joined the Group in 2015. He has
become an Executive Director of the Company since June
2016. He holds a Master Degree of China University of
Mining & Technology. He had served as General Manager
of Shenhua Trading Group and Shenhua Science and

Technology Development Co., Limited.

Dr. Shang Li, aged 44, joined the Group in 2012. He
has become an Executive Director of the Company since
January 2018. He holds a Ph. D degree in Computer
Engineering from Princeton University, USA. Dr. Shang
has extensive experience and knowledge incyber-physical
systems, embedded systems, computer systems and
nanotechnologies & etc. He is an Associate Professor of the
Department of Electrical, Computer and Energy Engineering
in University of Colorado at Boulder and the Chair Professor
in Tongji University. He was formerly the vice president and
Chief Architect of Intel China Research.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Wu Shaohua, aged 51, has been a non-executive
director of the Company from February 2017. Mr. Wu
holds a Master’'s degree in Nanchang Hangkong University
and a MBA in Peking University. Mr. Wu is the General
Manager of Huadian Fuxin International investment Co.,
LTD (“Huadian Fuxin”,
Company).
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERSEEEAEBNBEAER

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. Wong Yau Kar, David, GBS, BBS, JP, aged 60, has
been an independent non-executive director of the
Company since 2006. Dr. Wong received a doctorate in
Economics from the University of Chicago. Dr. Wong has
extensive experience in manufacturing, direct investment
and international trade. Dr. Wong is active in public service.
He is a Hong Kong deputy of National People’s Congress
of the Republic of China(F+_E2BEARREXAE). He
is also Chairman of the Land and Development Advisory
Committee, Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Authority
and Protection of Wages on Insolvency Fund Board. Dr.
Wong was appointed a Justice of Peace (JP) in 2010, Dr.
Wong was awarded a Bronze Bauhinia Star (BBS) in 2012
and a Gold Bauhinia Star (GBS) in 2017 for his valuable
contribution to the society.

Dr. Wong is currently an independent non-executive
director of Huayi Tencent Entertainment Company Limited,
Redco Properties Group Limited, Shenzhen Investment
Limited, Sinopec Kantons Holdings Limited and Guangnan
(Holdings) Ltd, the shares of which all are listed on the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

Mr. Yap Fat Suan, Henry, aged 72, has been an
independent non-executive director of the Company since
2006. He holds a master degree in Business Administration
from the University of Strathclyde, Glasgow, in the
United Kingdom. He is a fellow member of the Institute
of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales and an
associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Mr. Yap is also an independent non-
executive director of Frontier Services Group Limited, which
is listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, and Brockman
Mining Limited, which is listed on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange and the Australian Securities Exchange.
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EERSEEEAEBNBEAER

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Dr. Jesse Zhixi Fang, aged 71, has been an independent
non-executive director of the Company since January
2018. He holds a doctorate degree from the University of
Nebraska-Lincoln. He was the global vice president of Intel
and founded Intel Labs China, ILC as its first dean.

Ms. Huang Jian, aged 49, has been an independent
non-executive director of the Company since December
2012. Ms. Huang holds a Master degree from the Central
University of Finance and Economics of the PRC. She is also
a certified public accountant in the PRC. Ms. Huang has
over past 20 years of professional experience in accounting,
auditing and taxation. Ms. Huang is the partner of Ruihua
Certified Public Accountants and was a full time member of
SME Board Pubic Offering Review Committee of the China

Securities Regulatory Commission.
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Jiang Yingjiu, aged 49, joined the Group in 2007.
He is the Vice President of the Company. He holds a
Bachelor Degree of Renming University of China. Mr.
Jiang has worked for Beijing Urban and Rural Construction
Committee and China Energy Conservation Investment

Corporation.

Mr. Wang Xigang, aged 38, joined the Group in 2009. He
is the Vice President of the Company. He holds a Master
degree from Peking University. He has worked for Aviation

Industry Corporation of China.

Mr. Ma Suoming, aged 44, joined the Group in 2015.
He is the Vice President of the Company. He holds a
Master degree from North China Electric Power University.
He has worked for National Electricity Dispatching and
Communication Centre.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

ESREEEEAENBEAER

SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Mr. Shang Xuelian, aged 54, joined the Group in 2008.
He is the Vice President of the Company. He holds a
Bachelor Degree of Shandong University. Mr. Shang has

worked for Shandong Lubei Enterprise Group Limited.

Mr. Liu Ruiging, aged 53, joined the Group in 2011. He
is assistant to CEO. He holds a Master degree from North
China Electric Power University. He has worked for Huadian
Group New Energy Limited and China Shenhua — Guohua

Energy Investment Ltd.

BEBEAEHE)

ot

BB EE - 5458 - R 2008 FHIAREE
BARRAEBE HHEELRERAREELE
e BHEEYRILUREBILCEEE T -

BT L - 5358 0 K201 1 FIAREE -
WRARNFIBHEE BHBEEILENKRE
B2 FEREEHEREGRAA LT
B F AL RIRE N AR -

48 CONCORD NEW ENERGY GROUP LIMITED

BEHEREBERL A



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEERE

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) submit their
report together with the audited consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2017 (the

“Year").

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND GEOGRAPHICAL ANALYSIS
OF OPERATIONS

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The activities of the principal subsidiaries are set out in Note
49 to the financial statements. An analysis of the Group’s
income and contribution to operating profit for the Year is

set out in Note 6 to the financial statements.
RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss on page 140. The
interim and final dividends for the Year are set out in Note
13 to the financial statements.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group and of the
Company during the Year are set out in Note on pages 144
and 145.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the property, plant and
equipment of the Group and of the Company are set out in
Note 14 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the

Company are set out in Note 34 to the financial statements.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEERE

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Details of the distributable reserves of the Company as at
31 December 2017 are set out on page 144.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s bye-laws and there is no restriction against such
rights under the laws of the Bermuda, which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to

existing shareholders.
FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, and of the assets, liabilities and
equities of the Group for the last five financial years is set
out on page 316.

DIVIDEND

The board of directors recommends to declare a final
dividend of HK$0.01 per ordinary share in respect of the
year ended 31 December 2017 (2016: HK$0.01), subject
to the approval of the shareholders of the Company at the
forthcoming annual general meeting. Based on the number
of issued ordinary shares as of the date of approving this
consolidated financial information, the proposed final
dividend amounted to HK$86,768,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB72,530,000). This consolidated financial
information does not reflect this amount as dividend
payable as at 31 December 2017. It is expected that the
final dividend will be paid out before end of June 2018.
Further announcement will be made by the Company for

the date of closure of register of members.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEERE

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Company
repurchased a total of 34,800,000 ordinary shares of the
Company for an aggregate consideration of HK$13,322,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB 11,784,000) on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, all of the purchased
shares were subsequently cancelled by the Company upon
repurchase and accordingly the issued share capital of
the Company was reduced by the nominal value of these
shares.

SHARE OPTIONS

The Company has adopted the existing share options
scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) on 16 April 2007.

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to recognize
and acknowledge the contributions of the Qualified Persons
(as defined in the Share Option Scheme, including but not
limited to, the directors, employees, partners and associates

of the Group) of the Group.

Pursuant to this 10-year term Share Option Scheme, the
Company can grant options to the Qualified Persons for
a consideration of HK$1.00 for each grant payable by the
Qualified Persons. The total number of the shares issued
and to be issued upon exercise of the options granted to
each Qualified Person (including both exercised, cancelled
and outstanding options) in any 12-month period shall not
exceed 1% of the shares then in issue. During the Year,
no share options were granted under the Share Option
Scheme. The share option scheme limit was refreshed by a
resolution passed at the annual general meeting held on 20
June 2011.
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SHARE OPTIONS (CONTINUED)

Subscription price in relation to each option pursuant to
the Share Option Scheme shall be not less than the higher
of (i) the closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheets on the date on which
the option is offered to a Qualified Person; or (ii) the
average of the closing prices of the shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the 5 trading
days immediately preceding the date of offer; or (iii) the
nominal value of the shares. There shall be no minimum
holding period for the vesting or exercise of the options
but the options are exercisable within the option period as
determined by the board of directors of the Company.

Movements of the share option are set out in Note 35 to
the financial statements. The Share Option Scheme was
expired on 15 April 2017.

SHARE AWARD SCHEME

The Board has adopted a Scheme on 15 June 2015, and
revised it on 29 June 2017. The Scheme does not constitute
a share option scheme for the purpose of Chapter 17 of
the Listing Rules. Reference is made to the announcement
dated 15 June 2015 and 29 June 2017. Capitalised terms
therein should contain the same meanings unless otherwise
specified. The principal terms of the Scheme are outlined
below.

Purpose

The purpose of the Scheme is to (i) recognize the
contributions of the Employees; (ii) provide additional
incentives in order to retain the Employees to continue to
work for the Group; and (iii) attract suitable personnel for
further development of the Group.

Duration
Subject to any early termination as may be determined by

the Board, the Scheme shall be valid and effective for a
term of ten (10) years commencing on the Adoption Date.
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SHARE AWARD SCHEME (CONTINUED)
Administration

The Scheme shall be subject to the administration of the
Board (or a committee from time to time authorized by
the Board to manage the Scheme) and the Trustee in
accordance with the rules of the Scheme and the Trust
Deed. The Board may, from time to time, at its sole
discretion determine the number of Awarded Shares to be
awarded to the Selected Employees. The Board is entitled
to impose any vesting conditions, as it deems appropriate in
its absolute discretion with respect to the entitlement of the
Selected Employees to the Awarded Shares. Any grant of
the Awarded Shares to the connected persons (as defined
in the Listing Rules) of the Company must be approved by
the independent non-executive Directors (other than the
independent non-executive Director who is the Selected
Employee). The Board shall not instruct the Trustee to deal
in any shares in the market during the period when any
Director is in possession of unpublished inside information
in relation to the Company or when the dealings in the
Company’s securities by Directors are prohibited under any
code or requirement of the Listing Rules or any applicable

laws.
Scheme Limit

The Board shall not make any further Awarded which will
result in the nominal value of Shares awarded by the Board
under the Scheme exceeding five (5) per cent of the issued
share capital of the Company as at the Adoption Date (the
“Scheme Limit").

The maximum number of Shares which may be awarded
to a Selected Employee under the Scheme shall not exceed
one (1) per cent of the issued share capital of the Company
as at the Adoption Date (the “Individual Limit").
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SHARE AWARD SCHEME (CONTINUED)
Scheme Limit (Continued)

Each of the Scheme Limit and the Individual Limit shall
be refreshed automatically on each anniversary date of
the Adoption Date during the duration of the Scheme as
stipulated under the above stated in the Duration, such
that (I) the Scheme Limit so refreshed shall not exceed five
(5) per cent of the issued share capital of the Company as
at each anniversary date of the Adoption Date: and (ii) the
Individual Limit so refreshed shall not exceed one (1) per
cent of the issued share capital of the Company as at each

anniversary date of the Adoption Date.
Operation of the Scheme

The Board or a committee authorized by the Board to
manage the Scheme shall (i) issued as new Shares by the
Company to the Trustee held on trust for the Selected
Person or (ii) purchased by the Trustee on the market, in
either case out of cash paid by the Company by way of
settlement to the Trustee pursuant to the terms of the
Scheme. The Company shall pay the Trustee sufficient funds
for any purchase including the cost of the Awarded Shares

and the relevant expenses.

The Board or a committee authorized by the Board to
manage the Scheme shall inform the Trustee the names
of the Selected Employees, the number of shares awarded
to them, the vesting date, the vesting conditions (if any)
and other relevant information under the Scheme and
the Trust Deed. Within 20 business days (on which the
trading of Shares has not been suspended) after the Trustee
receives the cash for the acquirement of new Shares or
the purchase of the Awarded Shares, the Trustee shall
apply the same towards the purchase of the Awarded
Shares at the prevailing market price at its discretion. The
Awarded Shares so purchased will be kept by the Trustee
until the relevant vesting conditions are met and until then
the Awarded Shares will be transferred to the Selected

Employees accordingly.
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SHARE AWARD SCHEME (CONTINUED)
Vesting and Lapse

Subject to the terms and conditions of the Scheme and the
fulfillment of all vesting conditions, the relevant Awarded
Shares and Related Income held by the Trustee on behalf
of any Selected Employee shall vest in such Selected
Employee on the Vesting Date and the Trustee shall cause
the Awarded Shares and Related Income to be transferred
to such Selected Employee. If the Selected Employee fails
to deliver the signed and completed transfer documents to
the Trustee within the stipulated period, unless the Board
determines otherwise, the Awarded Shares and the Related
Income shall not vest and shall revert to the Trustee as the
Returned Shares.

In the event that prior to the Vesting Date the Selected
Employee ceases to be an Employee, any unvested Awarded
Shares and Related Income that the Selected Employee
is entitled to shall lapse accordingly, unless the Board
determines otherwise.

In the event that a Selected Employee dies before any
Award to him as vested, unless the Board determines
otherwise, the Award to him shall lapse immediately and
the Awarded Shares to which the Award relate and the
Related Income shall revert to the Trustee as Returned
Shares. If Awarded Shares have vested before the death
of the Selected Employee but have not been transferred
by the Trustee to him, such vested Awarded Shares and
Related Income shall be held by the Trustee for the personal
representative(s) of such Selected Employee and the Trustee
shall transfer to such personal representative(s) such
Awarded Shares and Related Income pursuant to the terms
of the Scheme and the Trust Deed.

Where any Awarded Share does not vest in accordance with
the relevant provision herein and becomes Returned Share,
the Board may grant Award(s) of such Returned Shares
to other Selected Employees subject to such conditions or
limitations as the Board may decide.
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SHARE AWARD SCHEME (CONTINUED)
Vesting and Lapse (Continued)

Notwithstanding any other provisions provided in the Share
Award Scheme, if there occurs an event of change of
control of the Company, whether by way of offer, merger,
scheme of arrangement or otherwise, unless the Board
determines otherwise, all the unvested Awarded Shares
shall immediately vest on the date when such change of
control event becomes or is declared unconditional and
such date shall be deemed to be the Vesting Date.

Rights

The Selected Employees shall not have any interest or rights
(including the right to vote or receive dividends) in any
Awarded Shares or in the Related Income unless and until
the Trustee has vested the ownership of such Awarded

Shares in the Selected Employees.

The Trustee shall not exercise the voting rights in respect of

any Shares held under the Trust.
Termination

The Scheme shall terminate on the earlier of the 10th
anniversary date of the Adoption Date or such date of early
termination as determined by the Board provided that such
termination shall not affect any subsisting rights of the

Selected Employees.

The maximum number of Awarded Shares that can be
awarded under the Scheme is 447,311,748. On 5 April
2016, 61,700,000 Shares have been awarded to the

Selected Employees pursuant to the Scheme.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this

report were:
Executive Directors

Mr. Liu Shunxing

Mr. Yang Zhifeng (resigned on 1 November 2017)
Ms. Liu Jianhong

Mr. Yu Weizhou

Mr. Niu Wenhui (appointed on 23 January 2017)
Mr. Gui Kai

Dr. Shang Li (re-designated on 2 January 2018)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Gao Fuchun (resigned on 9 February 2017)
Mr. Wu Shaohua (appointed on 9 February 2017)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Dr. Wong Yau Kar, David, GBS, BBS, JP

Mr. Yap Fat Suan, Henry

Dr. Jesse Zhixi Fang (appointed on 2 January 2018)
Ms. Huang Jian

In accordance with bye-law 99 of the Company’s Bye-laws,
Mr. Liu Shunxing, Ms. Liu Jianhong and Mr. Yu Weizhou
shall retire by rotation and, being eligible, offer themselves
for re-election at the forth coming annual general meeting.
In accordance with bye-law 102(B) of the Company's Bye-
laws. Dr. Shang Li and Dr. Jesse Zhixi Fang shall retire by
rotation and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election

at the forth coming annual general meeting.

All the non-executive Directors are appointed for as specific
term and will be subject to retirement by rotation and re-

election at the annual general meeting of the Company.
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DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

The Company has received from each of the independent
non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules
during the Year and the Company considered that they are

independent.
DIRECTORS’ S SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors has a service contract with the
Company which requires the Company to give a period of
notice of more than one year, or to pay compensation or
make other payments equivalent to more than one year's

emolument.
DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s
business to which the Company or any of its fellow
subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the Year or at any time
during the Year.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES' INTERESTS
AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE
COMPANY OR ANY ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

As at 31 December 2017, the interests and short positions
of each director and chief executive in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any
of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the”SFO"),
as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as
otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the ”Stock Exchange”) pursuant
to Part XV of the SFO or the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies (the”Model
Code”) under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”), or known to

the Company, were as follows:
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES' INTERESTS EERFETHABRAE D B E T8
AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES, ENmzR - HERORESTHES
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE ZRBERARBE(E)

COMPANY OR ANY ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

(CONTINUED)
(i) Long positions in the shares of the Company: (i) RELFTRGBZHER:
Approximate percentage of the total issued share capital
HERTRABHMOE D (%)

Approximate

percentage of

the total issued

Name of the Directors Personal Family Corporate Total share capital

RERTRAAH

] A EY AT st ZBAEAL

(%)

Liu Shunxing 9,000,000 — 2,436,479,387' 2,445,479,387 28.18
2/ )Ig 22

Liu Jianhong 8,710,000 — — 8,710,000 0.10
B4

Yu Weizhou 25,130,000 — — 25,130,000 0.29
AN

Niu Wenhui 4,000,000 — — 4,000,000 0.05
X

Gui Kai 3,600,000 — — 3,600,000 0.04

)

Yap Fat Suan, Henry 200,000 — — 200,000 0.002

3
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES' INTERESTS
AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE
COMPANY OR ANY ASSOCIATED CORPORATION
(CONTINUED)

()

(i)

Long positions in the shares of the Company:
(Continued)

Note:

1. 2,311,469,387 shares are held by China Wind Power
Investment Limited, China Wind Power Investment
Limited is wholly-owned by New Energy International
Limited, which in turn is a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Concord International Investment Limited (“Concord

Mr. Liu Shunxing held as to 47.78%

of the issued shares of Concord International,

and 125,010,000 shares are held by Guangfeng

International Holdings Limited which is wholly owned

International”).

by Beijing Guangfeng Energy Technology Limited. Mr.
Liu Shunxing held as to 99% of the issued shares of
Beijing Guangfeng Energy Technology Limited.

Long positions in the underlying shares of share
options of the Company:

Details of the movement of the share options are set
out in Note 35 to the financial statements.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017,
none of the directors and chief executives of the
Company and/or any of their respective associates had
any interest or short position in the shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company and/or any of
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company under Section 352 of the
SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Part XV of the SFO or the
Model Code adopted by the Company.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES

Save as disclosed under the heading “Directors’ and Chief
Executives’ Interests and/or Short Positions in the Shares,
Underlying shares and Debentures of the Company or any
Associated Corporation” above, at no time during the Year
was the Company, or any of its subsidiaries or associated
corporations, a party to any arrangement to enable the
directors (including their respective spouse and children
under the age of 18) to acquire benefits by the means
of the acquisition of the shares or underlying shares in,
or debentures of, the Company or any of its associated

corporations.
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2017, save as disclosed under the
section “Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and/
or Short Positions in the Shares, Underlying shares and
Debentures of the Company or any Associated Corporation”
above, the Company had been notified of the following
substantial shareholders’ interests, being 5% or more of the
Company’s issued share capital under Section 336 of the
SFO.

Long positions in the shares of the Company:

Number of the shares of

Name of shareholder

BEREHE

China Wind Power Investment Limited"”

Huadian Fuxin

£ iEH

the company held
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2,311,469,387 26.64
880,000,000 10.14
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (CONTINUED)

Note:

(1) The shares are held by China Wind Power Investment
Limited, China Wind Power Investment Limited is wholly-
owned by New Energy International Limited, which in turn
is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Concord International
Investment Limited (”Concord International”). Mr. Liu
Shunxing held as to 47.78% of the issued shares of Concord
International.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017, there
were no other persons who had an interest or short
position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company
which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under
Section 336 of the SFO, or which were recorded in the
register to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of
the SFO.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Company were entered into or existed

during the Year.
PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Bye-laws of the Company, the Directors
shall be indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets
and profits of the Company against all losses and liabilities
& etc. which they may incur or sustain by reason about
the execution of their duties, provided that this indemnity
shall not extend to any matter in respect of any fraud or
dishonesty which may attach to any of the Directors. The
Company has also arranged appropriate Directors’ and
liability insurance coverage for the Directors and officers of
the Group.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEERE

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND MAJOR CUSTOMERS

During the Year, sales to the Group's largest 5 customers
accounted for 55% of the total sales for the Year, and the
largest customer included there in amounted to 19%.

Purchases from the Group's 5 largest suppliers accounted
for 70% of the total purchases for the Year, and the largest
supplier included therein amounted to 39%.

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholders,
which to the knowledge of the Directors own more than
5% of the Company’s share capital, had interests in the
major suppliers or customers noted above.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintain a high standard
of corporate governance practices. Information on the
corporate governance practices adopted by the Company is
set out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 65 to
77 of the annual report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, as at
the date of this report, there was sufficient of public float
of the Company’s securities as required under the Listing
Rules.

AUDITOR

The financial statements have been audited by Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu who retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
Liu Shunxing
Chairman

Hong Kong, 16 March 2018
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EERERRE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The board of Directors of the Company (the “Board”)
is committed to achieving a high standard of corporate

governance.

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2017, the Board
has reviewed the Group's corporate governance practices
and is satisfied that the Company has complied with the
code provisions in the Corporate Governance Code (“the
Code”) set out in the Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules on
the Stock Exchange.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies (the “Model
Code”) set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. Upon
enquiry by the Company, all directors of the Company
have confirmed that they have complied with the required
standards set out in the Model Code throughout the year
ended 31 December 2017.

THE BOARD

As at 31 December 2017, the Board comprised of ten
Directors, including five executive Directors, one non-
executive Director and four independent non-executive
Directors. On 2 January 2018, Dr. Shang Li was re-
designated from the independent non-executive Director
to the executive Director, and Dr. Jesse Zhixi Fang was
appointed as the independent non-executive Director, the
Board then increased to eleven Directors. Biographical
details of the Directors are stated under the section

“Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management”.
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THE BOARD (CONTINUED)

The major shareholder of the Company, China Wind Power
Investment Limited (“CWPI") holds 2,311,469,387 shares of
the Company. CWPI is held indirectly by, amongst others,
two executive Directors namely, Mr. Liu Shunxing and Ms.

Liu Jianhong.

Save as disclosed above, there are no financial, business,
family or other material/relevant relationships between the

Board members.

For a Director to be considered independent, that director
should not have any direct or indirect material interest in
the Group. In determining the independence of Directors,
the Board follows the requirement set out in the Listing
Rules. Each of the independent non-executive Directors has
made an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

All the non-executive Directors (including the independent
non-executive Directors) are appointed for a specific term
and will be subject to retirement by rotation and re-election

at the annual general meeting of the Company.

The Chairman is responsible for providing leadership to, and
overseeing, the functioning of the Board to ensure that the
Board acts in the best interest for the Group. The Chairman
is responsible for approving the agenda for each Board
meeting, after taking into account the matters proposed
by other Directors. With the support of the executive
Directors and the Company Secretary, the Chairman seeks
to ensure that all Directors are properly briefed on issues
arising at Board meetings and receive adequate and reliable
information in a timely manner. The Chairman also actively
encourages all Directors to be fully engaged in the Board's
affairs and make contributions to the Board’s functions. The
Board has adopted good corporate governance practices
and procedures and has taken appropriate steps to provide
effective communication with shareholders.
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THE BOARD (CONTINUED)

The CEO is responsible for managing the business of the
Group, attending to the formulation and implementation
of group policies, and assuming full accountability for the
Group’s operations. Acting as the principal manager of the
Group’s business, the CEO develops a strategic operating
plan that reflects the long-term objectives and priorities
established by the Board, and is directly responsible for
maintaining the operational performance of the Group.
Working with the senior management and the Board, the
CEO ensures that the funding requirements of the business
are met and closely monitors the operating and financial
results against the plans and budgets. He also takes
remedial actions when necessary and advises the Board of

any significant developments and issues of the Group.

Ongoing dialogues are maintained with all Directors to keep
them fully informed of all major business developments and

issues.
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THE BOARD (CONTINUED)

The Board meets regularly, and at least 4 times a year.
Between meetings, senior management of the Group
provides to Directors the information on the activities and
developments in the business of the Group on a timely basis
and when required, additional Board meetings are held. In
addition, Directors have full access to the information of the
Group and the independent professional advice whenever
deemed necessary by the Directors. During the year ended
31 December 2017, a total of 24 board meetings and 3
general meetings (2017 AGM” and “2017 SGM") were
held and the attendance of each director is set out below:
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Board 2017 2017
Name of directors meetings SGM® AGM’
2017 FERER 2017 FRR
EEHA EEEgER BRAES BEXg’
Chairman Liu Shunxing 24/24 3/3 11
£ 2/l £
Co-vice Chairperson Yang Zhifeng' 20/20 2/2 1Al
BERIERE BaEE'
Liu Jianhong 24/24 3/3 11
BllR4T
CEO Yu Weizhou 24/24 3/3 11
THRABR RN
Executive Director Mr. Niu Wenhui? 21/21 3/3 171
HITES B E?
Gui Kai 24/24 3/3 11
E3))
Non-executive Director Gao Fuchun? 3/3 0/0 0/0
FHITES BEE’
Mr. Wu Shaohua* 20/20 3/3 1/1
REPELE"
Independent Non-Executive Directors Dr. Wong Yau Kar,
BYFHTES David,GBS,BBS,JP 24/24 3/3 1/1
&R 518+ ,GBS,BBS,IP
Yap Fat Suan, Henry 24/24 3/3 171
A
Shang Li° 24/24 3/3 1/1
N
Huang Jian 24/24 3/3 11
=8
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THE BOARD (CONTINUED)
Notes:

Mr. Yang Zhifeng has resigned as Executive Director and Co-
vice Chairperson on 1 November 2017.

Mr. Niu Wenhui has appointed as Executive Director on 23
January 2017.

Mr. Gao Fuchun has resigned as a non-executive Director on
9 February 2017.

Mr. Wu Shaohua has appointed as a non-executive Director
on 9 February 2017.

> Dr. Shang Li has re-designate from Independent Non-
executive Director to Executive Director on 2 January 2018.

° 2017 SGM was held on 27 February 2017, 25 September
2017 and 23 November 2017.

’ 2017 AGM was held on 5 June 2017.

Professional training for directors

All Directors, including independent non-executive
Directors, should always know their collective
responsibilities as Directors and of the businesses and
activities of the Group. Each newly appointed Director
would receive an induction package covering the Group’s
businesses and the statutory and regulatory obligations of
a director of a listed company. The Group also provides
briefings and other training to develop and refresh the
Directors’ knowledge and skills, and updates all Directors
on the latest developments regarding the Listing Rules
and other applicable regulatory requirements to ensure
compliance and to enhance their awareness of good

corporate governance practices.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, all existing
Directors have received relevant trainings by reading
relevant materials on the topics relating to corporate
governance and regulations and have provided their
training records.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the
Board has reviewed and monitored the training and
continuous professional development of directors and
senior management. The Board has also reviewed and
ensured compliance of the relevant legal and regulatory
requirements. Besides, the Company has set up three
committees including the Nomination Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Audit Committee. Each
committee has its specific terms of reference with reference
to the Code:

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises five members.
The Remuneration Committee is chaired by Dr. Wong Yau
Kar, David, GBS, BBS, JP with Mr. Liu Shunxing, Ms. Liu
Jianhong, Mr. Yap Fat Suan, Henry and Dr. Shang Li being
the members. The Remuneration Committee meets for the
determination of the remuneration packages of Directors
and senior management of the Group. In addition, the
Remuneration Committee also meets as and when required
to consider remuneration related matters such as making
recommendations to the Board on the Group’s policy and
structure for the remuneration of Directors and senior
management. Dr. Shang Li has been re-designated as an
executive director of the Company and has resigned as a
member of the remuneration committee of the Company
and Dr. Jesse Zhixi Fang has been appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company and a
member of the remuneration committee of the Company,
all the changes were effective on 2 January 2018.

Under its term of reference, the Remuneration Committee
assists the Board in achieving its objective of attracting,
retaining and motivating people of the highest caliber and
experience needed to shape and execute strategies across
the Group’s operations. The Committee also assists the
Group in the administration of the fair and transparent
procedure for setting policies on the remuneration of
Directors and senior management of the Group. The
written terms of reference are posted on the websites of
the Company and the Stock Exchange.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee has held 2
meetings with all members present. The Committee has
reviewed the remuneration packages for Directors and
senior management of the Group.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONTINUED)
Remuneration Committee (Continued)

Remuneration of senior management other than directors
for the year ended 31 December 2017.

FMEES(#E)
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Number of Executive

Total Remuneration Bands 4R KR E THABHE
HK$500,000 to HK$800,000 500,000 % T & 800,000 5T 5
Nomination Committee BEEES

The Nomination Committee comprises five members,
namely Mr. Liu Shunxing (Chairman), Ms. Liu Jianhong,
Dr. Wong Yau Kar, David, GBS, BBS, JP Mr. Yap Fat Suan,
Henry and Ms. Huang Jian.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee have
been determined with reference to the Code and are posted
on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
Under its terms of reference, the Nomination Committee is
responsible for identifying potential directors and making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-
appointment of directors of the Company. Potential new
directors are selected on the basis of their qualifications,
skills and experience which the Nomination Committee
considers will make a positive contribution to the
performance of the Board. During the year, the Nomination
Committee has held 2 meetings with all members present.
The Committee has reviewed the structure, size and
composition of the Board.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises three independent non-
executive Directors. The Audit Committee is chaired by
Mr. Yap Fat Suan, Henry and the other members of the
Committee are Dr. Wong Yau Kar, David, GBS, BBS, JP and
Ms. Huang lJian. Mr. Yap Fat Suan, Henry is a chartered
accountant in England and Wales and is a fellow member
of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and
Wales and an associate member of Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONTINUED)
Audit Committee (Continued)

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are in
line with the Code and are posted on the websites of
the Company and the Stock Exchange. Under its terms
of reference, the Audit Committee is required, amongst
other things, to oversee the relationship with the external
auditors, to review the Group's interim and annual financial
statements, to review the scope, extent and effectiveness of
the Group’s risk management and internal control system,

and to review the Group’s financial and accounting policies.

The Audit Committee has held 3 meetings during the year

with all members present.

There is no disagreement between the Board and the Audit
Committee on the selection, appointment, resignation or
dismissal of the external auditors.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

A summary of fees for audit and non-audit services is as

follows:
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Company has formulated risk management and internal
control policies covering the management of targets,
management of values and management of beliefs, and has
established a set of risk management and internal control
procedures encompassing the Company’s organisational,
institutional, procedural systems as well as information
system, in order to safeguard the Company’'s assets and
shareholders’ investment by means of ensuring that risk
control and strategic goals are compatible and within the
manageable scope, ensuring the proper maintenance of
accounting records and reliability of financial reporting, and
ensuring the compliance with relevant laws and regulations.

The Company has established a comprehensive set of
risk management and internal control and monitoring
organisational systems. There is a risk management system
comprising the Board of Directors, the Risk Management
Committee; and there is an internal monitoring system
made up of the Audit Committee and the audit department
which reports to the Board. This set of systems ensure
the continuous improvement and effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control system.

The Board is responsible for the risk management and
internal control systems of the Group and the review of
their effectiveness. The Risk Management Committee is
made up of the Group’s management, which is responsible
and reports to the Board. The committee is responsible for
the design, implementation and monitoring of the Group’s
risk management and internal control system, in order to
ensure the continuous effectiveness of the system.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS
(CONTINUED)

The Company has formulated regulations and systems
relevant to risk management and internal control, including
the “Risk Management System” (/& & & 12 #| & )),
“Internal Control and Work Management Guidelines” ({
#6474 T 1E & 3 9% 9% )), “Anti-corruption Management
System” ((EEBEEIEFIEZ)), “Internal Audit Management
System” ({( A #f & 5+ & 2 %l £ )), “Audit Management
Guidelines for Employment Termination” ((BEEZErIEIE
#e3%)) and “Professional Ethics and Code of Conduct for
Managers” ({12 ABZEBEMRE NITRER])), etc. The
risk management and internal monitoring system aims
to ensure the formulation and effective implementation
of financial, operational and regulatory monitoring and
risk management functions. The process and information
systems guarantee the effective execution of the risk
management and internal control systems. Through the
establishment of the process system, the Company will be
able to carry out risk identification, risk assessment, risk
response, risk monitoring and risk improvement. During
the year, the Company has also improved the information
systems relevant to risk management and internal control,
improved the internal monitoring platform and established
the corporate Wechat platform for internal monitoring
reporting. The Company upholds the fundamental principles
of "Prevention Precedes Punishment” and “Protect Those
Who Report, Avoid Those Who are Being Investigated”

The Board has conducted a review of and is satisfied with
the effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control system of the Group.

The Company has established an independent audit
function. The dedicated general manager of the function
is independent of the daily operation of the Group. The
Board and the Audit Committee believe that the internal
audit function of the Company has the capacity to
independently report to the Audit Committee in respect of
the matters including audit plan and resources, executed
audit procedures and material audit findings, and is capable
to conduct analysis and independent assessment on the
effectiveness of the Company’s risk management and
internal control systems.

This year, the Company has continued to engage an
international risk management and business consultancy
company in providing service to the Company, and assisting
in the improvement of the Group’s risk management and
internal monitoring system.
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FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the financial statements which give a true and fair view
and are in compliance with the statutory requirements and
applicable financial reporting standards. As at 31 December
2017, the Directors was not aware of any material
misstatement or uncertainties that might put doubt on the
Group’s financial position or continue as a going concern.
The Board endeavours to ensure a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of the Group’s performance,

position and prospects in financial reporting.

A statement by the auditor about the auditor’s responsibility

is set out on page 131 to 139 of this annual report.
COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary is responsible to the Board for
ensuring that Board procedures are followed and that
the activities of the Board are carried out efficiently and
effectively. The Company Secretary assists the Chairman
to prepare agendas and Board papers for meetings and
disseminates such documents to the Directors and board
committees in a timely manner. The Company Secretary
is responsible for ensuring that the Board is fully briefed
on all legislative, regulatory and corporate governance
developments when making decisions. The Company
Secretary is also directly responsible for the Group’s
compliance with the continuing obligations of the Listing
Rules and Codes on Takeovers and Mergers and Share
Repurchases, including publication and dissemination
of Report and Financial Statements and interim reports
within the period laid down in the Listing Rules, timely
dissemination of announcements and information relating
to the Group to the market and ensuring that proper
notification is made when there are any dealings of the

Director in the securities of the Group.
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COMPANY SECRETARY (CONTINUED)

The Company Secretary also advises the Directors on
their obligations for disclosure of interests in securities,
connected transactions and price-sensitive information and
ensure that the standards and disclosures required by the

Listing Rules are observed.

During the year, Mr. Chan Kam Kwan, Jason, the Company
Secretary of the Company, has undertaken no less than
15 hours of professional training to update his skills and

knowledge.
SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

How shareholders can convene a special general
meeting (“SGM")

Subject to Section 74 of the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda (the “Act”) and Bye-law 62 of the Bye-laws of the
Company, shareholders holding in aggregate not less than
10% of the paid-up capital of the Company have the right,
by written requisition to the Board or the secretary of the
Company, to request a special general meeting to be called
by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in

such requisition.

Procedures for putting forward proposals at a general

meeting

Any number of shareholders representing not less than
5% of the total voting rights of the Company on the
date of the requisition or not less than 100 shareholders
of the Company are entitled to put forward a proposal
for consideration at a general meeting of the Company.
Shareholders should follow the requirements and
procedures as set out in Section 79 of the Act for putting

forward such proposal at a general meeting.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (CONTINUED)

Procedures for directing shareholders’ enquiries to the
Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and
concerns to the Board in writing through the Company
Secretary whose contact details are as follows:

Suite 3901, 39/F, Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt
Road, Admiralty, Hong Kong

Fax: (852) 28660281

Email: cs@cnegroup.com

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at the
general meetings of the Company.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Board is committed in providing clear and full
performance information of the Group to shareholders
through the publication of interim and annual reports. In
addition to the circulars, notices and financial reports sent
to shareholders, additional information of the Group is also
available to shareholders on the Group's website.

Shareholders are encouraged to attend the annual general
meeting for which at least 20 clear business days’ notice
is given. The Chairman and Directors are available to
answer questions on the Group’s business at the meeting.
Subject to the Act and the bye-laws of the Company, all
shareholders shall have statutory rights to call for special
general meetings and put forward agenda items for
consideration in the general meetings. All resolutions at the
general meeting are decided by a poll which is conducted
by the Group’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong.

The Group values feedback from shareholders on its effort
to promote transparency and foster investor relationships.
Comments and suggestions are always welcomed.

CONSTITUTION AN DOCUMENT

There are no changes in the Company’s constitutional
document during the year.
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

This report aims to disclose the latest development in
environment, society and governance (ESG) commitment of
Concord New Energy Group Limited (hereinafter referred
to as “the Group” or “We") as of 31 December 2017 to
the stakeholders. This report should be read together with
the section “Corporate Governance Report” in the 2017
Annual Report and the column “Social Responsibility” on
the Group’s website.

Unless otherwise specified, the scope of this report covers
the ESG performance of the Group’s business in the
mainland of China only.

ESG MANAGEMENT IDEAL
Our Ideal

The Group is committed to being a socially and
environmentally responsible centennial corporation, and
is dedicated to expanding new energy industry while
operating in an environmentally friendly, safe, and low
carbon emission manner. We operate our business with the
best interests of the society and the environment in mind,
in order to foster a society that is capable of sustainable
development.

Our System

The Group has established an organizational system
and management system for social responsibility and
environmental protection, which has been inspected
and improved continuously in practice, so as to provide
organization and system guarantee for the implementation
of corporate ESG ideal.
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ESG MANAGEMENT IDEAL (CONTINUED)
Our System (Continued)

As the top managerial body of the Group, the Board of
Directors is responsible for the formulation of ESG strategies
and objectives; the Audit Committee under the Board of
Directors supervises the Group’s ESG commitment; the
management of the Group implements the ESG strategies
and objectives, which is assessed by the Board of Directors;
the Safety Management Committee gives guidance on ESG
work implementation; and the business units of the Group
are responsible for their own part of the ESG commitment.

The Safety and Quality Supervisory Department, newly
established in 2017, assumes the responsibility of the
former Office of Social Responsibility and Environmental
Protection, and focuses more on the supervision of safety
and quality.
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Board of Directors

EEE
Management

s

LEEREES
Safety Management
Committee

ESGEEER(#)

RMMERE)

EEEESEARAISCGIENRSEEE &
BESGHEBMEEZEMNHE  EFETRNE
HEESYWEBEESGIIE#ITES : £@%E
EEAESGEBMEENARE R Ui
REECER R2EELZEEYESGIE
EITEE  SESEBELES B IEESE
BEESGABTIENME -

2017 KREHMR(LZ2EEERE] - Bk
EZAMHEETHRBRERLE OB
BN BERAE R RE8 TIFMEE -

FMEZE"
Compensation Committee

Juswpedsq ulwpy
juswpedaq
uonesadQ 3 ueld
Juswedaq YH
TSI >
DR SRR B WY
Juswpedeq ||
DRI
juswipedaqg
Juswabeue| UooNASUOD
S SRR R H

hel=3
Buippig p Juswainooid

juswpedaq Alosinladng

J8)ua)
1500 108l01d
cHmEReH
juswiedag
juswpedaq |eba
Jaa) Jaulaiu| ABieusg
B |l SR

juswpedaq

DRA]

Branches

SR

Power Plants

Stakeholder Engagement and Material Communication
Events in 2017

We communicate with stakeholders through varied
channels, act on stakeholders’ expectations in earnest,
and continuously review our achievements to improve ESG

work.
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ESG MANAGEMENT IDEAL (CONTINUED)

Stakeholder Engagement and Material Communication
Events in 2017 (Continued)
Governments and Regulators

We keep effective communication and cooperation
with governments. We realize compliant operation and
transparent governance by acquainting ourselves with
relevant laws and regulations and policies. Through sound
interaction and efficient communication with international
and domestic governmental agencies, we grasp the
international industrial development trend and national key

development areas to explore new business frontier.

o In September 2017, the Group, as invited by a high-
ranking Mongolian delegation to China and the
International Finance Corporation (IFC) of the World
Bank, attended the Green Finance Development
Workshop held by Mongolia. In addition, we
exchanged ideas about matters of concern of

Mongolia in a deep and comprehensive fashion.

° In November 2017, Mr. Yu Weizhou, the CEO of the
Group, appeared at the Ministerial Conference on
Energy Cooperation within the China — Central and
Eastern Europe (“16+1") Cooperation Framework held
in Romania.

o Acting upon the national policy of the 13th Five-
Year Plan for Energy Development, the Group put
more efforts in the integration of Internet and energy
development in 2017, with active involvement in
green certificate and carbon trading. The Group
applied for green certificate for all of its controlled
programmes, among which those in Pingyuan of
Shandong, Wuwei and Guazhou of Gansu, and
Dalupu in Yongzhou of Hunan were successfully

certified.
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ESG MANAGEMENT IDEAL (CONTINUED)

Stakeholder Engagement and Material Communication
Events in 2017 (Continued)
Shareholders and Investors

With an attitude of being accountable for shareholders,
we adopt optimum corporate governance practices and
procedures and explore optimized business models in
order to provide reasonable returns to shareholders and
investors. We communicate effectively with shareholders
and investors through generating capacity data, corporate

announcements and annual reports, meetings, etc.

o In February, September and November, the Group
held Extraordinary General Meetings, and in June
2017, the Annual General Meeting was held. These
meetings successfully closed with all proposals

discussed and accepted through voting.

o In 2017, 77 announcements, statements and circulars
were made by the Group to disclose its operation and

financial status.
Employees

Out of respect for and protection of employees’ rights
and interests in labor, we provide favorable employment
benefits and development opportunities with a view to

sharing our achievements with employees.

o During semi-annual and annual seminars of the
Group, the management and staff review and
commend our achievements in the hope of learning
our lessons, discuss development plans, and look

ahead to prospects.
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ESG MANAGEMENT IDEAL (CONTINUED)

Stakeholder Engagement and Material Communication
Events in 2017 (Continued)
Suppliers and Contractors

In view of fairness of procurement, we select highly
qualified vendors and contractors through tendering, and
strictly control the management of procurement business
ethics to ensure faithful cooperation and fair competition.
Generally, we communicate with vendors and contractors
effectively through conferencing, website, telephoning and
face-to-face talk, etc.

° In 2017, more than 140 enterprises were invited to
supplier meetings of main engine and equipment
organized by the Procurement and Bidding Center
of the Group. It conveyed a concept of win-win
cooperation and mutual development, which furthered
vendors’ understanding of our procurement policies.

Customers and Partners

We are committed to achieving a win-win result with
our customers and partners. Based on diversification of
products and improvement of management, we provide our
customers with quality products and services and explore a
broader development path with our partners.

o In July 2017, the Group entered into strategic
cooperation with the Science and Technology
Innovation City in Lanzhou New Area Development
Co., Ltd. on building an efficient, smart and diversified
energy supply system in the Science and Technology
Innovation City in Lanzhou New Area and its related
parks.

o In December 2017, the Group signed a convertible
loan agreement with IFC. IFC would provide the
Group with a convertible loan of HKD234 million to
support the development and construction of our
domestic wind power programmes in China.
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ESG MANAGEMENT IDEAL (CONTINUED)

Stakeholder Engagement and Material Communication
Events in 2017 (Continued)
Communities and the Public

The Group’s active involvement in social welfare
programmes drives economic and cultural progress in
local communities. In particular, we establish and maintain
long-term, mutually beneficial and win-win constructive
relations with the residents of project locations through
communication. The Group actively responses to China’s
policy on poverty alleviation, and carries out targeted
poverty alleviation activities catering to different poverty-
stricken area and poor famers’ famimy. The Group is
also concerned to support educational cause. We set up
“Hope Schools” in Liaoning and other provinces, aiming
at improving school conditions, and also established
scholarship schemes in universities to fund impoverished
exceptional students’ education. The Group’s contribution
to society and the public goes hand in hand with the
development and growth of the Group.

Materiality Assessment

In virtue of continuous multi-channel communication, we
determine material issues that are the focus of reporting
and action using a matrix, considering the management’s
suggestions, internal and external experts’ analysis, internal
and external stakeholders’ survey and the”ESG Reporting
Guide”, Appendix 27 to the Listing Rules released by Hong
Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited (HKEx).
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COMMITMENT TO THE ORIGINAL ASPIRATION OF NEW
ENERGY DEVELOPMENT

From this century onwards, global climate change and
energy crisis have evolved into a core issue in topics on
future. Gradually, human beings become aware that a
thorough change to energy supply model and discovery
of new energy sources are the eventual solution to global
energy crisis and climate change, which yields numerous
opportunities for exploration and development of new

energy development technologies.

Since its foundation, the Group has taken the aspiration of
new energy development. For eleven years, the Group has
made a determined effort to accomplish its aspiration —
to push forward the development of new energy sources,
in response to national energy strategies and policies, and
in the knowledge that new energy development is critical
to national energy security and ecological civilization
construction.

We actively identify international conventions related to
new energy development as well as national and local
environmental protection policies, and keep a close
watch on policies and regulations that have significant
impacts on the Group, such as the Medium and Long-
term Development Plan for National Renewable Energy, the
Revitalization Plan for New Energy Industry, the Thirteenth
Five-year Plan for Energy Development and the Thirteenth
Five-Year Plan for Renewable Energy Development. We stick
to a green, safe and low-carbon path. We are a leader of
smart energy in terms of product innovation; a pioneer of
practical techniques in terms of technological innovation,
an engineer of water and soil conservation projects in terms
of ecological conservation; and a practitioner of low-carbon

office idea in terms of green operation.
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COMMITMENT TO THE ORIGINAL ASPIRATION OF NEW
ENERGY DEVELOPMENT (CONTINUED)

New Energy Development

The Group is dedicated to new energy development,
reacting to climate change and energy shortage by
developing business.

Resources Reserves

As of the end of 2017, the Group was capable of
developing over 28 GW wind resources and over 8 GW
solar energy resources, a guarantee for sustainable

development of new energy sources.

Wind reserves with exclusive project
development right Over 28GW
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COMMITMENT TO THE ORIGINAL ASPIRATION OF NEW Tyt BEHERER (&)
ENERGY DEVELOPMENT (CONTINUED)

New Energy Development (Continued) HEERERAR(E)
Exploitation of Energy Resources BE R B &

In 2017, the total installed capacity of the Group’s domestic 2017 EBBEANETMAEKATE2,700
power plants was 2,700 MW, with a total generation of JKE - B3 TEE420,348B T B o fHLL{E

4,203.48 million kWh. Compared with traditional thermal SEANNEE - EEEREFE1,250,000
power generation, our new energy generation saves WE - £57K 10,450,000 M8 - & > — EALFRBERR

coal and water by 1,250,000 tons and 10,450,000 tons 3,480,000 WF « A REAL Y HERR 3,276 W8
respectively; reduces emission of carbon dioxide, nitrogen W — ST E 36,928 1 © 528 IR A H
oxide and sulphur dioxide by 3,480,000 tons, 3,276 tons BN EAMEERMERYE  TAMHS
and 36,928 tons respectively. With the development of HETRE R BEME TEE S o

clean energy sources, we not only provide energy support

for the society, but also make a positive contribution to

energy-saving and emission-reduction.

Reduced CO2 emission (tons) = &1t 5z BE()
By 2017 &1k 2017

3,480,000

Accumulatively 2554

20,160,000

Compared with traditional thermal power
generation, the Group’s clean energy generation:

MEEEREAK N EE » REEHLREE

Saved water (tons) &%) F 7k (1)
By 2017 #1k 2017

Reduced NOx emission (tons) & 51t ¥35 BE()
By 2017 &1k 2017

10,450,000 3,276
Accumulatively 254 Accumulatively 255
57,530,000 18,029

Saved standard coal (tons) & #J1Z £ J5 ()
By 2017 #lk 2017

Reduced SO2 emission (tons) — & {L# HE ()
By 2017 #lk 2017

1,250,000 36,928
Accumulatively 254 Accumulatively 2554
6,910,000 203,446
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COMMITMENT TO THE ORIGINAL ASPIRATION OF NEW
ENERGY DEVELOPMENT (CONTINUED)

Smart Energy

During the Thirteenth Five-Year Plan period, the National
Development and Reform Commission, the National Energy
Administration and the Ministry of Industry and Information
Technology of the People’s Republic of China jointly put
forward views on driving the development of the “Internet
+"” smart energy, emphasizing in-depth integration of the
Internet with energy industry, promoting the development
of smart energy and enhancing the green, low-carbon and
smart energy development, in order to achieve a clean,
efficient, safe and sustainable energy development and
provide support for the sustained and healthy economic
and social development. The Group’s development strategy
coincides with these policies. As a result, the Group invests
more efforts in the development of smart energy, extending

its application constantly.
Optimization of POWER+

In 2017, POWER+, a public cloud platform for end-to-
end smart energy solutions, saw continued improvement
and innovation. POWER + creatively brings an ultimate,
simple and intelligent mode of energy production and
management to businesses, enabling machinery to think,
learn, diagnose, predict, analyze and optimize like human
beings. In the light of complete and accurate information
on assets that is accessible since all equipment assets
and O&M engineers are connected, the platform gains
insight into the assets using big data and intelligent
algorithms, and therefore is in a position to anticipate
and diagnose issues as soon as possible before equipment
fault shutdowns. Based on the results, as well as reliability,
performance, cost, and other factors, optimized operation
and maintenance policies are created and implemented to

reduce shutdowns.
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BE -dHEegRERRE

COMMITMENT TO THE ORIGINAL ASPIRATION OF NEW
ENERGY DEVELOPMENT (CONTINUED)

Smart Energy (Continued)
Application of POWER+

With the mature of innovative technology, in 2017, the
application scenarios of POWER+ expanded into intelligent
operation and maintenance of new energy power plants,
design optimisation, energy management and optimisation
of park buildings, green certificate management of

renewable energy sources, etc.

Case: Cloud Solution

The “Power Loss and Fault Positioning Model”, a
photovoltaic cloud solution of the POWER+ cloud platform,
facilitated the identification of 243 places that cased power
loss in a 30 MW project in Yunnan, concerning, grass
covering, sensor failure, hot spot cracking and so on; and
the “Yaw to Wind Deviation Diagnostic Application”, a
wind power cloud solution, facilitated the identification of
8 cases of material yaw angle issues in a 48 MW project in
Hunan. The cloud platform’s function of precise positioning
identifies inefficient equipment, thus improving operating

efficiency.

Solution of the POWER+ Cloud Platform

The 30 MW project in Yunnan
The Power Loss and Fault Positioning Model

Identified 243 cases of power loss

The 48MW project in Hunan
The Yaw to Wind Deviation Diagnostic Application

Identified 8 cases of material yaw angle issues
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BE -dHEegRERRE

COMMITMENT TO THE ORIGINAL ASPIRATION OF NEW

ENERGY DEVELOPMENT (CONTINUED)

Smart Energy (Continued)

Case: Big Data Management Platform

In terms of power allocation and sales, the big data
management platform POWER+, as an important means
to realize smart energy service, designs most efficient and
environment-friendly energy proportioning schemes to solve
users’ or even local energy issues, based on the knowledge
of users’ energy consumption and the integration of local
energy resources conditions. Through the establishment and
development of the big data management platform, we
have realized the efficient use of energy, reduced the cost
of energy consumption and raised the level and quality of
energy services.

By the end of 2017, the Group has reached a cooperation
agreement with Lanzhou Science and Technology
Innovation City, and completed the preliminary design of
a micro-grid programme. In this design plan, we planned
a complementary multi-energy supply system for the park,
including new energy sources such as combined cooling,
heating and power (CCHP), roof photovoltaic and micro
fans, achieving clean and efficient energy supply in the
park. In addition, we will develop a POWOER+ micro grid
information management service platform, multi-energy
complementary coordination and optimization scheduling,
distributed energy management system, energy storage
integrated management system, demand-side management
integrated control system and electricity sale and multi-
energy trading system, which enable electricity trading
between micro grid and major grid and intra-park energy
trading between supply and demand sides, facilitating the
intelligent control of energy supply, as well as demand-side
management of the load within the park.
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BE -dHEegRERRE

COMMITMENT TO THE ORIGINAL ASPIRATION OF NEW
ENERGY DEVELOPMENT (CONTINUED)

Smart Energy (Continued)
Honors to POWER+

In 2017, the POWER+ cloud platform achieved the data
accessibility for all wholly-owned power plants of the
Group, thereby enabling the comprehensive detection of
power plants and the alerting of equipment issues. POWER+
is also recognized in this industry.

o At the Second China International Internet of Energy
Summit during 27-28 April 2017, POWER+ was
awarded the “Best Product Breakthrough of the
Year”.

o At the Second Energy Internet and “The Belt & Road”
Forum during 21-22 September 2017, POWER+
was awarded the "Energy Internet Cloud Platform
Innovation of the Year”.

Technology Application

In order to enhance new energy development and ensure
stable efficiency of new energy sources, the Group
uses state-of-the-art technologies and boldly practices

progressive concepts.
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BE -dHEegRERRE

COMMITMENT TO THE ORIGINAL ASPIRATION OF NEW
ENERGY DEVELOPMENT (CONTINUED)

Technology Application (Continued)

In 2017, the Group strived to create the most cost-effective
power plants under the progressive concept of reducing
the cost of electricity. We pioneer innovative technologies
at all times, and advocated a mixed arrangement scheme
that involves different models of units and different tower
heights according to characteristics of different wind power
projects’ wind resources, for the purpose of increasing the
generating capacity of the entire wind farm; we always
value specialization in investment and construction of wind
farms and solar power plants, and, based on our project
experience, set up corporate standards that is higher
than the average industrial standards to pave the way for
application of emerging technologies. On top of that, to
embrace new technologies, we track and investigate new
technologies in wind power and solar power industries in
real time and encourage application of them in our projects
when the technologies mature.

Case: Units with Large Impellers and Large Single
Capacity, and Mixed Tower Technology

In 2017, the Group adopted units with large impellers
of over 131 meters’ diameter and large single capacity,
to several projects, and also used the 120m-high mixed
tower technology in the Group’s project in Anhui Province.
As a result, the annual power generation of this project
increased by 7,248,000 kWh/year (151h), and the annual
income increased by RMB4,911,800/year
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The application of units with of over 131 meters’ diameter and large single capacity, and120m-high mixed tower

technology in a project in Anhui Province
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The application of units with
of over 131 meters’ diameter 7,248,000 kWh/year
and large single capacity, and
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120m-high mixed tower
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Power generation increased by

Annual income increased by
RMB 4,911,800/year
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COMMITMENT TO THE ORIGINAL ASPIRATION OF NEW
ENERGY DEVELOPMENT (CONTINUED)

Ecological Conservation

As a new energy development corporation, the Group
operates in a way that hardly affects environment and
natural resources, if any, mainly concerning conservation
of water and soil during construction period. We are
aware that, as a responsible new energy development
corporation, ecological conservation is a priority in our
business. In project construction and development, facilities
preventing pollutions and other public hazards and protect
environment should be designed, constructed and put into

use in sync with the main part of the project.
More Efforts in Water and Soil Conservation

In 2017, the Group put more efforts in conservation of
water and soil, with the construction project of water and
soil conservation of RMB66.53 million put out to tender.
Moreover, it issued the Notice on Self-Acceptance of Water
and Soil Conservation Facilities in Construction Projects.
The Group implemented the vegetation restoration for
the completed project, and in the meantime stepped up
the water and soil conservation, road overhaul and grass

covering for projects-in-progress.
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Construction projects of water and soil conservation to tenders in 2017

RMB 66,530,000
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BE -dHEegRERRE

COMMITMENT TO THE ORIGINAL ASPIRATION OF NEW
ENERGY DEVELOPMENT (CONTINUED)

Ecological Conservation (Continued)
Enhancement of Optimal Design

We focus on optimal design in the initial stage of projects
so as to reduce water and soil damage to project sites. We
introduced high-and-low leg and full digging into 35kV
wire collection tower as a basic design, which decreased a
huge amount of earth and stone excavation; optimal design
was also applied in a project in Huanghou Town, Nanzhao
County, Henan Province, which reduced a huge amount
of earth and stone excavation. For Tibet Cuomei Solar
Power Project, we carried out research and promotion of a
scheme of unattended or less-attended station, leading to
an effective reduction the floor area of the station and the

building area of the complex building.
Improvement of Construction Technology

According to the system requirements of the Group, we
attach great importance to projects’ potential impact on
the surroundings. In wind power projects, we use the blade
hoists and modular trailers and change modes of unloading
and hoisting fans for projects, thereby largely reducing
the damage to mountains and vegetation. In solar power
projects, damage to ground vegetation was reduced by

means of precise construction.
Green Operation

The Group not only promotes revolution of social energy
structure and improvement of environmental quality in
operating activities, but also practices the concept of
environmental protection in administrative activities. In
2017, the Group attached importance to improvement of
vehicle management and office environment to reduce
the emissions and discharge from administrative activities,
and to increase the efficiency of resources and energy

consumption.
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COMMITMENT TO THE ORIGINAL ASPIRATION OF NEW
ENERGY DEVELOPMENT (CONTINUED)

Green Operation (Continued)
Vehicle Management

In April 2017, the Group issued the Concord New Energy
Group Limited Vehicle Fuel Management Regulations. Based
on the principle of “strict management, economization,
one card for one vehicle, and refueling with card”, we
formulated and adjusted vehicle fuel standards, according
to which budgets of fuel costs for official vehicles of all
units are reviewed and fuel management for vehicles of all
units are guided and supervised. Since the regulations came
into force, the unit fuel cost of the Group’s official vehicles
has dropped significantly.

Moreover, when unifying vehicle models according to the
Vehicle Configuration Standards, the Group phased out
old vehicles with new-energy electric vehicles, considering
that older vehicles produce more emissions. In 2017, 5 old
vehicles were scrapped.

Green Practice at the Workplace

In 2017, we paid more attention to improve the workplace
under the guidance of green practice concept. The Group
upgraded and renovated the existing ventilation system
of the headquarters’ office building in Beijing with the
introduction of a pressurized supply and exhaust fresh air
system, and strictly controlled PM2.5 concentration so as to

create a favorable working environment for employees.

We also optimized mobile office applications by virtue of
information technology, which, on the one hand, raises
efficiency, and, on the other hand, cuts down consumption
of paper and generation of waste paper. Waste paper and
other office garbage are handed over to the sanitation
agency for clearance and disposal by the property

management service.
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COMMITMENT TO THE ORIGINAL ASPIRATION OF NEW
ENERGY DEVELOPMENT (CONTINUED)

Table of Environmental KPlIs

Unless otherwise stated, the environmental KPIs provided in
this section only cover the business of the Group’s wholly-
owned businesses in the mainland of China, whereas that
of the joint-venture projects are excluded.
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1.  Emissions 1. HHY
Indicators i
BRENIER
Total GHG emissions (Scope 1 and 2) (tons)
o . s . 6,716.26
BEREYES (8B — M&EE =) (1)
Direct emissions (Scope 1) (tons)
o t 1,513.55
BEEEm(#EE—) (M)
Petrol for official vehicles (tons)
R 1,500.60
NIEE R (HE)
Diesel for official vehicles (tons) 1995
DB L (1) '
Indirect emissions (Scope 2) (tons)
bk fs e 5,202.71
g (g =) (W)
Purchased electricity (tons)
5,202.71
HNEBEE 7 (MR )
GHG emissions per RMB million in revenue (tons/RMB million) 6.48
BETWABEREER(ME, EE8T) '
Total hazardous waste (tons) 0.74
BEEEYEE (W) '
Hazardous waste per capita (tons/person)
o 0.00054
ANEOBEEEZEY (W, A)
Total non-hazardous waste (tons)
o e 2 = 104.41
mEREEYEE ()
Non-hazardous waste per capita (tons/person) 0.08
AEEREEY(HE,A) '
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COMMITMENT TO THE ORIGINAL ASPIRATION OF NEW
ENERGY DEVELOPMENT (CONTINUED)

Table of Environmental KPIs (Continued)

1.  Emissions (Continued)

Note:

Due to its business nature, the significant air
emissions of the Group is GHG emissions, arising
mainly from electricity and fuels derived from fossil
fuels. The Group’s GHG inventory includes carbon
dioxide, methane and nitrous oxide. GHG emissions
data is presented in carbon dioxide equivalent and
is based on the “2015 Baseline Emission Factors for
Regional Power Grids in China” issued by the National
Development and Reform Commission of China, and
the “2006 IPCC Guidelines for National Greenhouse
Gas Inventories” issued by the Intergovernmental Panel
on Climate Change (IPCC). Data of indirect emissions
arising from purchased electricity do not cover
purchased electricity for projects in Tibet, because
the baseline emission factors is not available in the
regional grid division in the “2015 China Regional Grid

Baseline Emission Factors”.

Hazardous waste mainly includes waste toner
cartridges, ink cartridges, waste fluorescent tubes,
waste mineral oil, etc. Waste toner cartridges,
ink cartridges, waste fluorescent tubes and other
hazardous office waste are recycled by qualified service
providers. Waste mineral oil generated from operation
and maintenance of wind power projects, as agreed,
are subjected to compliance recycling by vendors
provided that the wind turbines are under warranty.
Since current wind power equipment is still under
warranty, these data are not yet included therein.
The Group will disclose data of such hazardous waste
when applicable; other waste mineral oil generated
from vehicle maintenance is submitted to qualified
service providers for recycling.

Non-hazardous waste mainly includes household
garbage, which is calculated according to the
Handbook on Domestic Discharge Efficiencies for
Towns in the First Nationwide Census on Contaminant
Discharge published by the State Council.
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ENERGY DEVELOPMENT (CONTINUED)

Table of Environmental KPIs (Continued)

2. Energy and Resources Consumption

AL - BREHERMEE)

REAMIEER(E)

2. EEFRREFEFE

Indicators T
Total energy consumption (MWh
AL Y g); ip ( ) 13,965.97
BeR BB 2 (JRELRF)
Direct energy consumption (MWh
S a0 \Ugy ip ( ) 6,179.24
Petrol for official vehicles (MWh)
e . 6,129.97
NG DR (IR FLE)
Diesel for official vehicles (MWh) 49.27
NIEB LR (JKFLEF) '
Indirect energy consumption (MWh
1o eneray consamp (MR 7,786.73
LR B FE K ELRE)
Purchased electricity (MWh)
. 7,786.73
SNEE ) K ELRS)
Energy consumption per RMB million in revenue (MWh/RMB million) 13.48
BETWARERCKER, B&T) '
Water consumption (tons)
27,661.07
FEKEZ (WE)
Water consumption per capita (tons/person) 2191
AEFEKE (R N) '
Note: it
1. Total energy consumption is worked out by the 1. BREBREZBEREENEBENE

data of electricity and fuel with reference to the
coefficients in the General Principles for Calculation
of the Comprehensive Energy Consumption (GB/T
2589-2008) published by General Administration of
Quiality Supervision, Inspection and Quarantine of the
People’s Republic of China, and the Standardization
Administration of the People’s Republic of China.

2. Water consumption refers to that of tap water.

3. Packing materials is not applicable to the Group.
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BEING PEOPLE-ORIENTED, AND SEEKING CO-
DEVELOPMENT TOGETHER WITH EMPLOYEES

The development of our cause relies on talents. The
Group adheres to the core values of “people-oriented,
value creation, pursuit of excellence and harmonious
development”. We respect and appreciate all employees
for their efforts in the cause of new energy development,
and strive to provide them with a favorable workplace
and a broad development platform, thus realizing the co-

development of the employees and the enterprise.
Employment of Outstanding Talents

We strictly abide by the laws and regulations on
employment of employees, prohibiting recruitment of child
labour and forced labour and protecting the legitimate
rights and interests of employees. We insist on the concept
of open and fair recruitment and employment, giving equal
treatment to candidates and employees irrespective of

ethnicity, race, gender and religious beliefs.

In 2017, we continued to attract more talented people to
our workforce. The total number of employees amounted
to 1,312, an increase of 129 over the year of 2016.
This provided a strong intellectual support for our cause
development. We take great pride in our employees’
versatility, teamwork and harmonious relationships.
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BEING PEOPLE-ORIENTED, AND SEEKING CO- LXA%ZF ) ;ﬂél%ﬁﬁﬁ(ﬁ?}
DEVELOPMENT TOGETHER WITH EMPLOYEES
(CONTINUED)
Employment of Outstanding Talents (Continued) EWNEEAA(E)
A 40 _______________ ‘ m Eastern China ERMME 143
'~ 112 ‘ m Southern China e 33
" ® Central China FEim 137
= Northern China FEibE 479
L m Northwestern China  Fadtiif 131

B Southwestern China FfgHIE 147

. 217 Region
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= 56 and above 565%IA \
= 46-55 46-555%
= 36-45 36-455%,
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Support for Talent Development BIOATRRE
The Group is concerned about development of employees, EFEEIETHRENZE  SHtHTRAMNE
offering different career paths and promotion channels, RIFIBE ) IREEEBEE - e REXEsE

including management, technical and professional TRMBEZREENEABE - BTEEY
development channels, for different positions and ETHRREZH £EEEEZEETHT

competences. To support employees’ development and R NEASHEERIFINAS - FLERAA
promotion, the Group designs corresponding trainings EHA  HARBE -

for employees in view of difference in competence, in
the hope of exploiting everyone’s talent and realising co-

development.
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BE -dHEegRERRE

BEING PEOPLE-ORIENTED, AND SEEKING CO-
DEVELOPMENT TOGETHER WITH EMPLOYEES
(CONTINUED)

Support for Talent Development (Continued)

The Group built a complete training system, comprising
systems, courses and lecturers. In the training systems, the
Group has formulated the Group Training Management
System, the Group Training Archives Management
Regulations, the Group Internal Lecturer Management
Regulations and the Beijing Management Centre New Staff
Orientation Training Regulations and so on, providing
institutional basis and support for training activities. In
terms of training courses, the Group designs different
courses for senior and mid-level management, management
trainees and newcomers, and give a variety of training
courses in line with annual training plans. In terms of
lecturers, the Group lays great stress on the build-up of
an internal part-time lecturer team, who are obligated
to develop teaching materials independently and deliver
induction trainings to newcomers. In 2017, the per capita
training time of the Group’s employees was 72 hours,

representing an increase of 4 hours over the year of 2016.
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BE -dHEegRERRE

BEING PEOPLE-ORIENTED, AND SEEKING CO-
DEVELOPMENT TOGETHER WITH EMPLOYEES
(CONTINUED)

Support for Talent Development (Continued)

In 2017, the Group’s trainings focused more on employees’
actual working needs, aimed at improving their practical
working ability. To this end, we strengthened pre-training
survey by conducting interviews with personnel in key
positions, and based on the results of which the training
content was updated and training service was improved.
Furthermore, we enhanced training pertinence and
satisfaction by preparing training manuals and organizing
working groups to implement training programmers.
Finally, we also strengthened post-training survey through
qguestionnaires on effectiveness, and optimized the
process of their filling, sorting and archiving. By means of
systematic training management, new employee satisfaction
to trainings increased from 88.89% in June 2017 to 100%
in September 2017.
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BE -dHEegRERRE

BEING PEOPLE-ORIENTED, AND SEEKING CO-
DEVELOPMENT TOGETHER WITH EMPLOYEES
(CONTINUED)

Support for Talent Development (Continued)
Cases of Offline Trainings

In 2017, the Group carried out a variety of offline training
activities, such as leadership improvement trainings for
the mid-level management, competence build-up trainings
for reserve talents, orientation training for newcomers,
trainings for financial system personnel, trainings for

engineering system project managers, etc.

Case: Mid-level Management Trainings

In 2017, the Group organized two sessions of mid-level
management trainings, covering managerial know-how,

leadership and team building.

Case: Reserve Talents Competence Build-up Training

Between 1 and 5 August 2017, the Group carried out
the third reserve talent training program in Cangzhou, in
which 53 management trainees took part. The training
covered modern managerial know-how, professional
accomplishment, interpersonal skills, action & execution and

team building.

Case: New Employee Orientation Trainings

In 2017, newcomer orientation trainings took place
in March, June and September respectively with 44
participants in total. The contents included the enterprise’s
general situation, corporate strategy, rules and regulations,

etc.
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BE -dHEegRERRE

BEING PEOPLE-ORIENTED, AND SEEKING CO-
DEVELOPMENT TOGETHER WITH EMPLOYEES
(CONTINUED)

Support for Talent Development (Continued)

Cases of Offline Trainings (Continued)

Case: Departmental Trainings

According to actual needs of different departments, the
Group’s engineering system, financial system and power
distribution department organized various training programs

to meet the needs of staff development.

Training Platforms

Apart from traditional offline training courses, the Group is
also trying to develop an online training platform, in order
to facilitate improvement of employees’ professional skills

and expertise.

Case: Online College

In 2017, the Group, by upgrading the online college,
realized single sign-on of OA system and online college
system, which enabled the function of learning on mobile
end. Besides, more than 100 items of training materials
and training books were added. The mobile end of the
online college supports not only streaming news, teaching
materials, videos and books, but also online exams and
questionnaire surveys, making it possible to learn anytime

and anywhere and bring more fun to its users.

Case: “Concord” Senior Management Learning Platform

“Concord” Senior Management Learning Platform, an
internal service tool for the senior management, provides
information on management and training courses to
corporate management every half month. In 2017, the
platform published 32 articles and recommended 384
courses, which enriched the selection of external training

courses for the management.
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BE -dHEegRERRE

BEING PEOPLE-ORIENTED, AND SEEKING CO-
DEVELOPMENT TOGETHER WITH EMPLOYEES
(CONTINUED)

Emphasis on Employee Incentives

Employees’ contribution is fundamental to the continuous
development of the enterprise. Along with competitive
remuneration, subsidies and favorable career development
and promotion channels, we actively explore other
incentives to express our appreciation and gratitude
to our employees for their efforts, and share the fruits
of development with them. To show our gratitude to
employees for their contributions, the Group holds a work
summary meeting on a yearly basis to honor outstanding
individuals and groups with the Outstanding Employee
Award, the Innovation Award, the Group Pacesetter Award,
the Outstanding Team Award and the Special Chairmanship
Award.

Employee Awards

In the annual evaluation of employees in 2017, 6 Annual
Innovation Awards, 10 Group Pacesetter Awards, 5
Outstanding Team Awards, 1 Gold Pacesetter Award and 2
Special Chairmanship Awards were presented at the Group

level.

108 employees of all service lines and subsidiaries were

singled out as “Outstanding Employees”.
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BE -dHEegRERRE

BEING PEOPLE-ORIENTED, AND SEEKING CO-
DEVELOPMENT TOGETHER WITH EMPLOYEES
(CONTINUED)

Emphasis on Employee Incentives (Continued)
Employee Stock-Ownership

In order to better share achievements with our employees,
the Group encourages them to take ownership of our
stakes, thereby keeping them highly motivated and devoted

to the Group’s sustainable and sound development.

Case: Employee Stock-ownership in the O&M Company

In 2017, some key employees in the Group's O&M
Company officially became the shareholders through
business registration, which fully mobilized the team and
improved the cohesion of the O&M Company, and also

further enhanced the comprehensive strength of the Group.

Case: Employee Stock-ownership in the Design Company

In May 2017, the Group’s Design Company was successfully
listed in the National Equities Exchange and Quotations
(NEEQ). Prior to this, the Design Company has completed
joint-stock transformation, and attracted several core
employees to take its shares. A series of measures for
joint-stock reform and capital operation enhanced the
sense of belonging and cohesive force of the Design
Company’s backbone team, which not only fully motivated
staff’s initiatives and enthusiasm, but also strengthened
the Group’s core competitiveness and the comprehensive
strength.
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BE -dHEegRERRE

BEING PEOPLE-ORIENTED, AND SEEKING CO-
DEVELOPMENT TOGETHER WITH EMPLOYEES
(CONTINUED)

Guarantee for Occupational Health and Safety

Employees’ occupational health and safety are the top
priority in our operation and management. To ensure
employees’ safety is our primary responsibility for the
employees and their families. Therefore, we are committed
to providing our staff with a safe, healthy and comfortable
working environment, and strictly implementing safety

inspections as preventive measures.

In respect of the development of occupational safety
system, the Group strictly abides by the laws and
regulations governing occupational health, and conducts
strict management over employees’ occupational health
and safety. At the group level, we have set up an
occupational health and safety management system to
continuously improve the three-tier safety management and
control system of our headquarters, branches and project
companies, as well as to equip the safety and production
positions with highly competent staff. At the level of our
subsidiaries, we continuously establish and improve the

standards of occupational health rules.

In terms of the organizational structure, the Group specially
established the Safety and Quality Supervisory Department
to take safety issues as the top priorities in the Group’s
work schedule in 2017. On the basis of implementing
applicable national guidelines, policies, decrees and

regulations on production safety, labor protection, quality
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supervision and environmental protection, as well as H ko ﬁtﬂtﬁévi B SEMNNET
relevant regulations by the national industrial authorities, 2HEE HeaTHIBERE . TEH4LE -
the Safety and Quality Supervisory Department performs g%ﬁ;%ﬂr‘ CEBRE.EZEEET
supervision and inspection on the safety and quality, B BITLEEEEERBL -

social responsibility, environmental protection, industrial

hygiene, quality rules and regulations, labor protection and

assessment management of all departments and units of

the Group.
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BE -dHEegRERRE

BEING PEOPLE-ORIENTED, AND SEEKING CO-
DEVELOPMENT TOGETHER WITH EMPLOYEES
(CONTINUED)

Guarantee for Occupational Health and Safety (Continued)

Due to the business characteristics, the Group’s Engineering
Company and the O&M Company pay particular attention
to the occupational health protection. Both have passed
OHSAS certification, and established hazard identification
and risk assessment plans in the production process based
on health surveillance and monitoring policies to ensure

timely detection and elimination of safety hazards.

In the process of construction, production, operation and
maintenance, we provided appliances for labor protection
to related employees, and conducted regular trainings on
industrial hygiene risks. Additionally, regular or exceptional
safety inspections are conducted at group and company
levels, and safety accountability is further enhanced with
strict enforcement that unsafe operation is the overriding

reason for disqualification.

In 2017, the O&M Company promulgated and implemented
safety systems and mechanisms, and specified the
management objectives and specific measures at the
corporate level. "Ten Bans on Production Safety” and
“Ten Strict Rules for Production Safety” were advocated
and implemented among employees. In regards to
equipment management, it has issued and implemented
the “Preventive Measures for and Emergency Response
to Typical Major Accidents of Wind Power and Solar
Power Plants” and the “Top Ten Perseverance in Tour
Inspections”. In the aspect of operation, the “Ten Major
Strict Preventive Measures” have implemented to clarify the
safety responsibilities of various functional departments.
These mechanisms effectively prevented unsafe incidents,
and there was no casualty, grid and equipment incident

caused by the Group’s responsibility in 2017.
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BE -dHEegRERRE

BEING PEOPLE-ORIENTED, AND SEEKING CO-
DEVELOPMENT TOGETHER WITH EMPLOYEES
(CONTINUED)

Organization of Diversified Activities

The Group not only attaches importance to employees’
occupational health and development, but also expects
them enjoy work and life. To this end, the Group organized
a variety of activities to bring employees happiness. There
diversified activities effectively alleviate the pressure of
work, strengthen communication among colleagues,
increase corporate cohesion, and improve employees’

identification with the Group.

Club Activities

In recent years, the Group has developed a wide range of
interest clubs in order to enrich employees’ spare time and

promote the concept of healthy living and working.

Case: Badminton Club

The Badminton Club has been established for many years,
and activities are organized on a regular basis. The club
leases professional indoor venues, provides badmintons
and drinking water, and organizes activities every Thursday.
It attracts a large number of employees with interest in
badminton, which promotes the communication among

employees.

Case: Gym Club

The Group specially spares a place in the office building and
equips it with yoga mats, treadmills and other professional
fitness facilities for employees to use and exercise in a
convenient way, which enhances the awareness of sports

and improves staff’s health.
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BE -dHEegRERRE

BEING PEOPLE-ORIENTED, AND SEEKING CO-
DEVELOPMENT TOGETHER WITH EMPLOYEES
(CONTINUED)

Organization of Diversified Activities (Continued)

Club Activities (Continued)

Case: Race Walking Club

In 2017, the Group carried out three outdoor walking
activities themed “Power of Walking” and organized
gathering activity thereafter. Such events not only
enhanced the awareness of sports, but also promoted the

communication and understanding among employees.

Sports Games

The O&M Company held its first “Cup of Safe,
Professionalism, Value and Excellence” sports games in
Xuzhou, Jiangsu on 21 and 22 September 2017 for the
purpose of further enriching the cultural life of employees,
enhancing their physical fitness and building the corporate
culture. At the Games, employees showed their talents and
enthusiasm, exercised their bodies while winning honors,

and enhanced their team spirit.

BEING ENTERPRISING, AND PROMOTING
STANDARDIZED MANAGEMENT

Standardized management is a guarantee for the survival
and sustainable development of enterprises. The Group
always insists on the spirit of “Integrity, Dedication,
Cooperation and Entrepreneurship”, and is committed to
realizing sustainable development through improving the
quality of products and services, enhancing the supply chain

management and enhancing clean corporate governance.
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BE -dHEegRERRE

BEING ENTERPRISING, AND PROMOTING
STANDARDIZED MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Improving the Quality of Products and Services

The main products and services of the Group include
production, engineering procurement construction (EPC),
operation and maintenance, engineering design and smart
energy management. In the service, we strictly abide by
applicable national laws, regulations and administrative
rules, and implement technical standards and quality
management systems to improve our qualification. In
addition, we take every possible means to meet customer
needs, strive to create value for customers, and improve

product and service quality while expanding business.
Quality Service and Regulations First

Since its establishment, the Group has always been
emphasizing internal management standardization. Through
developing and improving the management systems,
standardized operation is fundamentally integrated into the
Group. We strictly manage the Group’s various businesses
and strengthen the system management and supervision
in all major business areas including design, construction,

production, operation and maintenance.

In terms of design services, the Design Company adheres
to the quality policy of “scientific management, elaborate
design, sincere service, and customer satisfaction”,
and established a comprehensive quality control system
characterized with “standardized control of design
techniques with specifications, management of design
process with systems, clear assignment of designers and

quality tracking on products”.
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BE -dHEegRERRE

BEING ENTERPRISING, AND PROMOTING
STANDARDIZED MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Improving the Quality of Products and Services
(Continued)

Quality Service and Regulations First (Continued)

In term of the project construction, the Group has
improved its institutional system. This year, the Group
issued the CNE Engineering Supervision Assessment
Management Measures, modified the CNE Construction
Quality Assessment Management Measures, and the
Production Acceptance Transfer Management, and
issued the Equipment Transportation Management
Requirements in Construction Site and the Notice on
Regulating Management of Construction Projects during
Commissioning and Trial Production. These rules provide
positive guidance for the management at each phase of
construction projects.

In production and operation, the Group’s Production and
Operation Department reviewed relevant systems in the
fourth quarter of 2017, and reduced the existing over 40
operation standards and systems 40 to around 10 through
integration, abolishment and revision, to make them truly
effective, customized and problem-solvable.

In operation and maintenance, the O&M Company
focuses on safety management, and issued the Safety
Technology Management Rules, the Top Ten Perseverance
in Tour Inspections of CNE-OM and other rules in 2017.
At the same time, it has built up the safety idea that
“safety is an insurmountable red line at all times, and
personnel, equipment and operation shall maintain safe”.
It established the Safety Management Committee headed
by the management to improve the safety management
mechanism. The Safety management has achieved
continuous improvement through persistent and regular
follow-up inspections.

Continuous improvement on management rules and
standards is the embodiment of the Group’s strict self-
discipline. The Group is heading forward on the right way
of developing new energy, and does the right thing in a
right manner
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BE -dHEegRERRE

BEING ENTERPRISING, AND PROMOTING
STANDARDIZED MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Improving the Quality of Products and Services
(Continued)

Qualification Enhancement and Platform Extension

In addition to improving the systems, the Group constantly
benchmarks itself against outstanding enterprises and
focuses on the qualification enhancement of business
departments, stepping forward to become a first-class clean
energy enterprise. In 2017, the Group succeeded in the
renewal of a number of qualifications and obtained new

recognition with its excellent management and technology.

In February 2017, the O&M Company obtained the
Level Il qualification in repairing and testing of Permit
for Holding (Repairing, Resting) Electric Power Facilities
issued by North China Regulatory Authority of National
Energy Administration, with which the O&M Company can
undertake the maintenance and testing business of power
facilities of 110kV and below in voltage class. Acquisition
of Level Il qualification greatly improves the industrial
competitiveness, and lays a solid foundation for business

expansion of the company.

In July 2017, the Design Company succeeded in getting
certified by the updated quality system after rigorous review
and audit by the audit team of Beijing CEC Certification
Centre. The new version of the national standards
adopt the risk-based thinking, and emphasizes more on
organizational environment, leadership, quality performance
and the effectiveness of quality management system. The
success in certification showed that the Design Company
has been in line with the international standards in term of

quality management system.
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BE -dHEegRERRE

BEING ENTERPRISING, AND PROMOTING
STANDARDIZED MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Improving the Quality of Products and Services
(Continued)

Qualification Enhancement and Platform Extension
(Continued)

In September 2017, the O&M Company took the
opportunity of the re-examination of the safety
management system, environmental management system
and quality management system (Three Standards) to
review and optimize its management system in accordance
with the latest national certification standards on quality
management system. It successfully passed the certification,
which laid a solid foundation for the production

management standardization.

In December 2017, the O&M Company passed the
assessment of the wind power O&M services by TUV
Rheinland and obtained the certificate accordingly. Such
assessment and certificate reflected the Group’s high
technical capabilities in terms of wind power O&M, and
further enhanced the capability of wind power O&M market

expansion.
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BE -dHEegRERRE

BEING ENTERPRISING, AND PROMOTING
STANDARDIZED MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Improving the Quality of Products and Services
(Continued)

Standards Establishment and Quality Control

The Group constantly formulates and improves various
standards to strengthen quality control, improve the
stability of new energy power generation and enhance
service quality.

The safety and availability of wind turbines have direct
impact on wind power generation. In order to improve wind
power generating capacity, the Group issued Measures for
Prevention and Control of Major Breakdown in Major Parts
of Wind Turbines (Trial) for the targeted inspection schemes
and standards of major parts like towers, blades, gearboxes,
generators and yawing systems, and carries out special
safety inspection of wind turbines accordingly. In 2017, the
availability of Wind Turbine Generator (WTG) wholly-owned
by the Group was 98.53%, an increase of 0.19 percentage
point compared with 98.34% in the previous year. The
availability of wind power plants was 97.33%, an increase
of 0.20 percentage point compared with 97.13% in the
previous year.

In order to ensure the reliability of invested solar power
plants, the Group’s Technical Department issued the
Technical Specifications for Quality Inspection of Crystalline
Silicon Photovoltaic Modules for Solar Power Plants in
2017 based on a large amount of test data to make the
testing standards more sophisticated. At the same time,
the Group established cooperation with well-known testing
and certification institutions such as TUV Rheinland and
China General Certification Center to equip our testing
rooms with a complete testing system for solar power
plants, which enabled professional testing of power plants’
performance and efficiency, internal and external quality
of solar modules, photovoltaic cluster safety, power plant
light resources certification, inverter performance and
quality and other aspects. In 2017, we conducted rigorous
modules factory acceptance test, inspections upon arrival,
grid connection test and annual inspection of all new-built
and in-production solar power projects of the Group.
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BE -dHEegRERRE

BEING ENTERPRISING, AND PROMOTING
STANDARDIZED MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Improving the Quality of Products and Services
(Continued)

Standards Establishment and Quality Control
(Continued)

This year, the Group’s Production and Operation
Department timely adjusted and fixed the equipment and
technical problems detected in some projects. In Yunnan
Huaping Project, we solved the problem that the solar
panels were seriously polluted by cement powder. The
Group selected several cleaning measure and compared the
effects. The final cleaning method selected by the Group
was to clean first with oxalic acid and then with water,
and the cleaning frequency was based on the local rainfall
and the production of the cement plant. As such, while the
photovoltaic panels were kept clean, and the generation
capacity was increased by 20%. The Group also carried out
lightning-proof technical renovation in Yunnan Huaping
Project, and thus reduced two lightning trip-outs of
outgoing line compared that in 2016. Tibet Naidong Project
conducted technical renovation of high-voltage cable heads,
which could greatly reduce trip-out rate of the high voltage
cable heads in the plateau environment after renovation.

Continuous Learning and Ability Improvement

The Group attaches great importance to the development
of new energy policies and technologies so as to enhance
the employees’ knowledge and professional skills and to

provide products and services with high quality.

In 2017, the Group invited renowned domestic and foreign
experts for seminars and exchanges on micro grid and
cable technology, distribution and electricity sales business
trainings, status quo of distributed solar power generation,
development and operation mode, wind resources and
application at various stages, certification processes for
wind turbines, etc.
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BE -dHEegRERRE

BEING ENTERPRISING, AND PROMOTING
STANDARDIZED MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Improving the Quality of Products and Services
(Continued)

Continuous Learning and Ability Improvement
(Continued)

We also pay attention to the exchanges and
communications with industry association. In April 2017,
with the recommendation of the standing members to the
Council of China Electric Power Planning and Engineering
Association (CEPPEA) and after election at the council
meeting, the Design Company was approved to join
CEPPEA. Such a move will help the Group to keep abreast
of the latest development in the industry, collect industry
information, and make use of this platform’s advantages
in project evaluation, qualification upgrading and scientific
research activities.

By keeping learning and research, the Group has also
made gratifying achievements in patents. Power Concord
developed the application of wind control strategy for
wind turbine generating unit yaw system, and applied
for 8 software copyright certificates, amounting to a
total of 16 certificates. The O&M Company applied for 4
technology patents. These achievements are conducive to
the protection of intellectual property rights and enhance

the Group’s competitive edge and development potentials.

Power Concord
Applied for 8 software copyright certificates
Holding a total of 16 copyright certificates

The O&M Company
Applied for 4 technology patents
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BE -dHEegRERRE

BEING ENTERPRISING, AND PROMOTING
STANDARDIZED MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Improving the Quality of Products and Services
(Continued)

Consistent Efforts and Fruitful Achievements

In 2017, the Group's equity-proportioned installed capacity
reached a historical high of 1,806 MW, an increase of 13%.
Among them, 440MW were newly increased by the power
plants in southern non-curtailed regions, and the proportion
of these plants was raised to 72%. The newly increased
capacity came all from solely-owned power plants. The
proportion of solely-owned power plants in the equity-

proportioned capacity rose to 63%.

As at the end of the reporting period, the Group’s Design
Company has designed or contracted more than 100
projects related to solar power plants and over 230 related
to wind power plants, and accomplished more than 400
feasibility reports for new energy projects, covering all
domestic provinces, West Africa, Southeast Asia and other
regions. A total of more than 90 wind power plants and
solar power plants with different capacities have been
constructed. The O&M Company has provided overall
operation and maintenance services for 60 wind power
plants and 29 solar power plants, with a total capacity
of over 4,100MW, covering about 20 provinces and

autonomous regions.
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BE -dHEegRERRE

BEING ENTERPRISING, AND PROMOTING
STANDARDIZED MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Improving the Quality of Products and Services
(Continued)

Customer Orientation and Honorary Recognition

The Group's professional competence and excellent service
resulted in customers’ recognition and awards from
the industry. On January 18, 2018, the Group won the
“Best Value Public Utilities and Environmental Protection
Company Award” at the Insights on New Value of Hong
Kong Stocks Forum cum presentation ceremony of the 2017
Golden Hong Kong Stock Awards for Listed Companies held
in Shenzhen on January 1, demonstrating highly recognition

of the Group from the industry and investors.

Meanwhile, the Group’s businesses all made constant
development in corresponding area, and won various

awards.

The O&M Company persistently promotes "7S”
management (i.e. sort, set in order, shine, standardize,
sustain, safety and save), and refined management, with
improving its capabilities as the basis, being oriented
by satisfying customer’s needs, quickly responding to
customers’ needs and providing customized solutions for
different customers. Through advanced technology and
quality professional services, the O&M Company successfully
finished tasks assigned by customers. In 2017, the O&M
Company received a total of more than 20 testimonials and

award banners, wining customers’ recognition.

In 2017,

Testimonials and award banners received by
the O&M Company reached

20+
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BE -dHEegRERRE

BEING ENTERPRISING, AND PROMOTING
STANDARDIZED MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Improving the Quality of Products and Services
(Continued)

Customer Orientation and Honorary Recognition
(Continued)

In December 2017, at the Second “China Wind Power
Industry Development Cooperation Forum cum presentation
ceremony of the Second “Wind Power Cup” Annual Best
Wind Power Enterprise sponsored by fgzixun.com, the
O&M Company again won the first place in the network
ranking of O&M enterprises with its good reputation and
professional capacity, and was awarded “2017 Top Ten
Wind Power O&M Enterprise”.

The Design Company also demonstrated good professional
capabilities in many projects. Henan Junxian Huolongang
Wind Power Project, designed by the Group’s Design
Company, was awarded “Beijing Outstanding Engineer
Project of Prospective Design” in 2017, and was the only
power generation project that won this award. Moreover,
the “Holingola River Circular Economy Demonstration
Power Project” in Inner Mongolia Autonomous Region was

awarded “2016-2017 National Quality Project”.
Strengthening Supply Chain Management

Supply chain management directly affects the quality of our
products and services. We attach great importance to the
management of suppliers and contractors, and carry out
strict check over the selection of suppliers and contractors.
The Group has always been committed to establishing and
maintaining long-term and close partnership with suppliers
and contractors, maintaining timely communication, and
implementing safety management accountability, in order

to achieve win-win cooperation.
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BE -dHEegRERRE

BEING ENTERPRISING, AND PROMOTING
STANDARDIZED MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Strengthening Supply Chain Management (Continued)
Focus on Contractors’ Safety

We attach great importance to contractors’ safety
management at all stages of projects. We strictly control
the selection of construction contractors in the bidding
stage, and strictly assess the construction qualification,
project manager’s experience, project performance, safety
performance and social credibility. Prior to the project, we
organize safety training for contractors, unify mechanism on
management, risk control, assessment and evaluation, and
carry out strict supervision so as to ensure that the safety
of contractors is under control. During the construction
period, the supervision units carry out safety inspection
every week, and stop the work immediately for correction
once any potential safety problem is identified. In addition,
the Group has established a list of qualified construction
units and implement the principle that “unsafety is the
overriding reason for disqualification. A contractor would
be blacklisted in the event of a safety accident.

Emphasis on Material Procurement Quality

The Group has always attached great importance to the
management of its suppliers, and makes regular assessment
of suppliers every year. In 2017, the supplier management
measures was revised.

In the appraisal of equipment suppliers, in addition
to assessing profitability, product quality, governance
structure, service awareness, sustainable development,
corporate reputation and performance ability, the Group
attached more importance to field inspection to suppliers
(including production base and equipment operation).
Moreover, the Legal Department of the Group increased
legal background investigation on suppliers, and revised
supplier accession criteria and periodic assessment
mechanism, so as to further raise their service awareness,
prevent slackness after accession. As such, the quality and
service of goods which are not purchased from the Group’
centralized purchasing are ensured.
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BE -dHEegRERRE

BEING ENTERPRISING, AND PROMOTING
STANDARDIZED MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Advocating Corporate Culture of Honesty

Clean and transparent corporate governance is an important
guarantee for the Group’s sustainable development. In
terms of anti-corruption, the Group actively abides by
relevant laws and regulations, and makes great efforts to

create a clean and honest corporate culture.
Improving Anti-Corruption System

The Group attaches great importance to anti-corruption
work, resolutely cracks down on corruption, and eliminates
derelictions. In addition to following national and local
relevant laws and regulations, the Group also made anti-
corruption and anti-bribery rules, including the Anti-fraud
Management Rule, the Supervision Management Measures,
and the Code of Ethics and Conduct for Managers. In 2017,
we abolished the previous Anti-Corruption Rule and the
Management Measures for Complaint and Reporting, and
formulated the Anti-Fraud Management Rule. The new rule
incorporated the rewards and punishments measures of the
HR department, refined ways of penalties, made specific
provision on the category of fraud, enriched the form of
fraud prevention and control, and increased reporting

platform and activities of publicity and training.
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BE -dHEegRERRE

BEING ENTERPRISING, AND PROMOTING
STANDARDIZED MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Advocating Corporate Culture of Honesty (Continued)
Creating New Channels for Publicity

In the anti-corruption work, the Group adheres to the
basic principles of “a combination of punishment and
prevention”, and “protecting whistle-blowing and avoiding
the person reported participating in investigation”, and
adopts comprehensive measures such as training, education,
guidance, encouraging whistle-blowing, and public
disclosure of treatment results. In addition to traditional
reporting channels such as telephone, email and mailbox, in
early November 2017, we created a new reporting platform
at WeChat. Moreover, we updated anti-fraud knowledge
and case analysis on the WeChat platform every week, and
disclosed irregularities within the Group. At the end of
2017, 4 articles related to anti-corruption were published

on that platform, with over 600 views.

In the daily anti-corruption publicity and training, we
emphasize more on consciousness of integrity and
anti-corruption. The Group formulated Agreement of
Commitment to Integrity, which is circulated during biding.
Requirements on integrity is emphasized at the bid opening
site. In addition, for some problems found in a few project
audits in 2017, we conducted investigation, reporting,
notification and rectification, and held accountability of
persons in charge of the projects through warning and
education. Through various measures, the Group spares no

efforts to develop righteousness and prevent corruption.
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BE -dHEegRERRE

GIVING BACK TO SOCIETY BY PARTICIPATING IN PUBLIC
WELFARE

As a socially responsible business, whether within or
outside the Group, maintaining close relationship is
essential for accumulating social capital. In order to
increase the recognition of the community and carry out
our mission and values, we not only need to gain the trust
of the communities where we operate, but also facilitate
their recognition of the Group’s contribution to the
sustainable development of their communities. Therefore,
we encourage the Group’s members to participate in public
welfare activities, so as to promote the development of
local education, economy, culture and environment.

Targeted Poverty Alleviation

The Group actively responds to the national policy of
“targeted poverty alleviation”. Catering to different
regional environment at project sites and the different
conditions of the poor farmers, the Group makes accurate
identification and carries out targeted poverty alleviation

activities to fulfill its social responsibilities.
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BE -dHEegRERRE

GIVING BACK TO SOCIETY BY PARTICIPATING IN PUBLIC
WELFARE (CONTINUED)

Targeted Poverty Alleviation (Continued)

Case: Poverty Alleviation through Solar Power
Generation Project

666 beneficiaries

RMB 3,000 per person per year

A donation of RMB 1.998 Million per year
A duration of 20 years

As one of the major national poverty alleviation projects,
poverty alleviation through solar power generation project
injects new vitality into poverty alleviation. We seize the
opportunity of innovative policy, and make use of the
Group’s advantages to give back to the society.

As a key poverty alleviation project in Hebei Province, the
Group’s Hebei Haixing Project helped 666 poor people
in the local area with RMB 3,000 per person per year,
accounting for 1.998 million yuan annually and lasting
for 20 years. In the meantime, the project delivered about
25.17 million kWh of clean energy to the area every year.
We make full use of the advantages of regional resources
and the poverty alleviation project to improve the living
standards of local residents and bring economic and social

benefits to the community.
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BE -dHEegRERRE

GIVING BACK TO SOCIETY BY PARTICIPATING IN PUBLIC

WELFARE (CONTINUED)

Targeted Poverty Alleviation (Continued)

Case: Donation by Project Company

A donation of RMB80,000 for poverty alleviation to
Caohe Village, Chenghe Town, Xiangzhou District

In response to the call of targeted poverty alleviation policy,
the Group’s Hubei Yushan Wind Power Project proactively
participated in the targeted poverty alleviation actively at
Caohe Village, Chenghe Town, Xiangzhou District.

On November 1, 2017, Hubei Yushan Project cooperated
with Xiangzhou District Branch of the Land and
Resources Bureau to carry out poverty alleviation activity
in Caohe Village, donating RMB 80,000 to the village
for infrastructure construction and improving people’s

production and living.
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BE -dHEegRERRE

GIVING BACK TO SOCIETY BY PARTICIPATING IN PUBLIC

WELFARE (CONTINUED)

Targeted Poverty Alleviation (Continued)

Case: Poverty Alleviation through Education

In 2017, the Group’s Yanyuan Solar Power Project made
donation to the primary school in at Beishan Village,
Dahe Town, Yanyuan County, Liangshan Prefecture,
Sichuan Province, where the project is located. On June
1, the subsidiary carried out an activity themed “Caring
to Students at Mountainous Area, and Igniting Dreams
via True Love on June 1". Daily supplies such as clothes
and hats, and school supplies such as books donated by
employees were delivered to and distributed among local
residents and students. The Group’s employees practiced
the traditional virtues of philanthropy and helping the

poverty and the needed.

During the donation, the Group's employees conducted
education on fire prevention to local villagers through
various forms such as posters, exhibition boards and
speeches so as to enhance their awareness of fire safety,
which also mitigate the pressure of fire prevention work at
the solar power plant. As a result, such an activity formed a
benign interaction between the company and local people,
and promoted win-win development.
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BE -dHEegRERRE

GIVING BACK TO SOCIETY BY PARTICIPATING IN PUBLIC
WELFARE (CONTINUED)

School-Enterprise Cooperation

Education, like the new energy development, is a cause of
“achievement at the present and benefit for the future.”
The Group attaches great importance to the investment in
education by continuous donation on education and school-
enterprise cooperation, so as to support training talents for

the new energy industries and the society as a whole.

Case: Ulangab Vocational Educational Union Platform

The Group and Ulangab Vocational College in Inner
Mongolia have maintained long-term communication and
cooperation. In June 2017, the Group’'s O&M Company
joined Ulangab Vocational Educational Union, realizing
exchanges of advantages and resources sharing in
equipment, teachers, technology, information, teaching,
internship, production area, skill appraisal and graduate
employment, so as to optimize allocation of vocational

education resources.

In order to help students quickly adapt to work after
graduation, and to enable them to combine the theory
and practice, the Group’s O&M Company received over
30 students for cognitive learning at the power plant in
July, 2017, so that the students could gain a preliminary
understanding about wind plants. In November, the O&M
Company dispatched technical experts to schools to launch
a one-month pre-job skill upgrading training on safety,
power transformation, wind turbines and corporate culture
so that students formed a deeper understanding of the
company, which laid a foundation for students to adapt to
work faster.
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BE -dHEegRERRE

GIVING BACK TO SOCIETY BY PARTICIPATING IN PUBLIC
WELFARE (CONTINUED)

School-Enterprise Cooperation (Continued)

Case: Scholarship at North China Electric Power
University (NCEPU)

RMB200,000 per year
A consecutive 10 years of scholarship
Accumulatively 1,110 beneficiaries

In order to jointly promote the development of renewable
energy education, the Group keeps investing RMB
200,000 each year to establish “NCEPU China Wind
Power Scholarship”, “"NCEPU China Wind Power Subsidy”,
“NCEPU China Wind Power Science and Technology
Innovation Scholarship”,”NCEPU Wind Power Talent
Scholarship”,”"NCEPU China Wind Power Graduate
Admission Scholarship” to reward outstanding students
with good academic performance, to help families with
financial difficulties, to reward outstanding students with
scientific innovation and inventions, to reward outstanding
teachers and management staff, and also to encourage

outstanding undergraduate students for further study.

By 2017, the Group had been cooperating with the NCEPU
Foundation for 10 years, and the total number of students

that won the scholarship had reached 1,110.
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BE -dHEegRERRE

GIVING BACK TO SOCIETY BY PARTICIPATING IN PUBLIC
WELFARE (CONTINUED)

Supporting Communities

As a responsible enterprise, the Group maintains interaction
with local residents, and helps them solve difficulties and

problems in daily life, which resulted in good social impact.

On the early morning of November 27, 2017, while three
employees of the Group’s O&M Company were making
daily inspection at Inner Mongolia Mengdong Concord
Shuangjinzi Project, they found that an empty-nest elderly
couple living in Gahaimiao Village had been suffering from
power cut and water shortage for more than 10 days.
Soon after, the three employees went to the couple’s home
to examine and solve the circuit problems, and eliminate
potential safety problems, so that the power and water
supply were restored. Such behavior was widely recognized
and praised by local residents.

By understanding others’ needs need and solving their
difficulties, the Group’s employees continuously start from
small to give back to the society and practice the Group's

mission through selfless contribution.
LOOKING AHEAD

The Group has been committed to growing to be
an international world-class clean energy enterprise,
with a social mission of providing quality clean energy
and professional services and striving for harmonious
development between man and nature. Against the
current background of favorable opportunity, the Group
will strengthen the control for environmental and social
risks, and carries out work with focus on the four parts of
ESG (energy development, employee growth, enterprises
operation, and public welfare) to realize sustainable

development.
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BE -dHEegRERRE

LOOKING AHEAD (CONTINUED)
Energy development

We will firmly adhere to the path of developing new energy
sources, so as to continuously and stably provide clean
energy for society. We also stick to green operation and
green business. At the same time, we will enhance the
foundation and pioneer in innovation by vigorously promote
the innovation and application of the Internet of Things in
terms of smart energy, and stably developing business in
electricity allocation and sales as well as leasing, so as to

provide richer energy products to customers.
Employee growth

We will continue to uphold the “people-oriented” talent
growth principle, by providing employees good salary,
welfare, and development platform, constructing a safe
work place, and advocating a healthy working and living
style, so as to ensure sufficient human capital for the

Group’ s development.
Enterprises operation

We will cherish the opportunities for development,
rapidly expand our capacity, and make determined efforts
to improve our ideology and style of work, in order to
enhance our core competencies and overall management
of the Group. Through solid style building, we will realize

standardized enterprise management.
Public welfare

We will actively fulfill corporate responsibilities by paying
more attention to the needs of communities and increasing
manpower and material resources on public welfare, so as

to share the gains of the Group with the society.
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Deloitte.

To the shareholders of Concord New Energy Group
Limited

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)
OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of Concord New Energy Group Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) set out on pages 140 to 315, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2017, and the consolidated statement of profit
or loss, consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes
in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting

policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2017, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the
“HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs"”) issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with
the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit
of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and
in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a

separate opinion on these matters.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

REETEEE)

Key audit matter

REEER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BMESTPNAEEFAREASE

Goodwill impairment assessment

2 R (B 5

We have identified the goodwill impairment
assessment on power generation segment as
disclosed in Note 16 to the consolidated financial
statements as a key audit matter because significant
management judgements and assumptions are
involved as part of the impairment review, any
impairment charge could have a significant financial
impact on the consolidated financial statements.
HREEZEsEAEREABMRR - BERIRE
ZBEEBBGEHVBERETRENUBLE - A
- HAEER S B RERMT 165 E 2B ERE
FHEER SRR ERT FIA

The Group conducted an annual impairment review
on goodwill by assessing the recoverable amount
of goodwill based on fair value less cost of sell of
the relevant groups of cash-generating units under
Hong Kong Accounting Standard 36 — Impairment
of Assets.
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The impairment review performed by the
management involves assumptions as set out below,
amongst others, that are subjective in nature and
the Company is required to use judgement in
applying such information:
HERERTORERFS R Tl TBRE -
BIFEME R Pl EAAST 2 AT HIE -

BEER

—  Estimated online power quantity of each wind
farm;

— BRERZEFLBEEE

—  Projected installation capacity;
— TERARKERE:

—  Expected tariff rate; and
— JEEfEE M

—  Discount rate.
—  BERE -

Our procedures in relation to goodwill impairment
assessment included:

T BB E R A TR A 2 ER R AT

o assessing the valuation methodology and
discount rate used in determining the
recoverable amount of goodwill by consulting
internal valuation specialists;

e RBBFAABLEZRR  HEETLDKSER
TR E A 2 R E BT AN BE IR & F DARTE

o comparing the key assumptions applied in
the impairment assessment, amongst others,
the estimated online power quantity of each
wind farm, projected installation capacity and
expected tariff rate to historical performance
of the Group;

o  HRFMERPERZERRER WEREMZ
TEEt LWEEE  BARKASE  EHEEAMN
MRXE HESECELERETLE

o reconciling input data to supporting evidence,
such as approved budgets, and considering
the reasonableness of these budgets;

e BBAEK MEMEBES EIFERE
THER  WEEZFHEE &L

o examining the management’s sensitivity
analysis over the key assumptions applied in
the impairment assessment; and

s EREEEMRMESNETRAZARKRRKRME
T2 - LR

o checking the adequacy of disclosures in Note
16 to the consolidated financial statements.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

REETEEGE)

Key audit matter

BEETER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BREFSPNNEERRBETER

Impairment assessment of tariff adjustment receivables

FE W B (E B B E R

We have identified the impairment assessment
of such tariff adjustment receivables as disclosed
in Notes 4 and 21 to the consolidated financial
statements as a key audit matter because the
impairment assessment of such tariff subsidy entails
a significant degree of management judgement.
AEGEMBRERNE4M21 PR E 2 EEHBER
RZBEARAFTEEREBERARE LEITHE -
- FRAPI A 3t 1B B R RO BB B A8 R A R
FEAEE-

Tariff subsidy on sales of electricity is recognised as
revenue for the Group’s power plants eligible for
the subsidy. The settlement of such electricity tariff
is subject to government authorities’ approval by
agreeing to include the electricity power plants into
the Reusable Energy Tariff Subsidy Catalogue (the
“Catalogue”).
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As at 31 December 2017, the tariff adjustment
receivables recognised by the power plants which
have not been included in the Catalogue was
RMB140,377,000 and the impairment assessment
of such tariff adjustment receivables requires
management judgement about whether the power
plants are eligible for the application of entering the
Catalogue.
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Our procedures in relation to impairment assessment
of tariff adjustment receivables included:
FAPIEt ST FE UL EE R RE ZORBE RIS P 3R B 2 A2
s

o obtaining a list of the Group’s power plants of
which tariff subsidy is recognised as revenue
but yet to register in the Catalogue, and
discussing the requirements and conditions
for the registration in the Catalogue with the
directors of the Company;

s ERKEEMBEIRWAERKRELZARB
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o obtaining an opinion from the Group’'s legal
advisor to confirm that the power plants in
the list above are qualified for, and had met,
all the requirements and conditions for the
registration in the Catalogue; and

s ERESEZEZAEMIER  UERLAER
BEBBmEELAB S 2RMENS : AR

o checking, on a sample basis, of the past results
of the registration of the Group’s power plants
in the Catalogue.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the annual report, but does not
include the consolidated financial statements and our

auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any

form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued
by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable
the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud

or error.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or

have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for

overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section
90 of the Bermuda Companies Act, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B R R S

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that

achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion
on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely

responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we

identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and

where applicable, related safeguards.

BRBAREAGEESUBRRAREZE
£ (&)

EBEARGAMBRR ZERIIR - &5
AR BREBEBEARKGEPBHREK
REAATBTHEBARSINEE -

s ERANESEARINERGEBNERM
BEMZ AL BEEZERERE  HA
HAMBHREABERERL - AMAERE
B ERBERWTESREZEN - BMY
B ERAEZEHEME -

BREMEESN - RPREEEBRTAHEZ
ERE RHEZPFUARBEAERFER 8
R PIEE AT B AR P R A BB Hl 2
ERERE -

BPERCAEBRHETER  FHALMADE
NEBRBLMHEBEXER  WEMLME
BTAARAGEMERARETERMBELM
ZIIEBELIEMEE  UREERZER
™ - MHE P o
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B R R S

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public

interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the
independent auditor’s report is Mak Chi Lung.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

16 March 2018

BRBAMREAGESUHBRRAREZE
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RERMDEEBEBZER  HMAKES
HREMBRREAT CEAFTHBE SRR
EiHFE - BB ERBEMBRSPHRAZS
B BRIPAEERBELAHAZEEE %X
EREFRZ2BERT  WREEEHERM
BEPBRBAFFTRENZAERRBBE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

mERFER

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BHZE2017F12 A3 HIEFE

2017 2016
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Wit AREFT AREFT
Revenue WA 6 1,035,967 1,785,166
Cost of sales and services rendered  BRTGAC AN K% $4 € Ak 2N 10 (643,752) (1,266,974)
Gross profit EF 392,215 518,192
Other income H g A 43,593 49,189
Other gains and losses, net i R EE - JF 58 7 72,023 130,839
Distribution and selling expenses HEER (530) (6,992)
Administrative expenses EIEEA (179,018) (167,728)
Finance costs B TS R AR 9 (184,903) (141,677)
Share of profit of joint ventures, net JE{EA &GS @ F58 102,940 73,445
Share of profit of associates, net FE(LEEE N A - FEE 24,246 19,366
Profit before income tax BRET BB ANER 10 270,566 474,634
Income tax expense FrfiR X 11 (63,948) (13,018)
Profit for the year REERBER 206,618 461,616
Profit for the year attributable to: EFISFBR :
Owners of the Company KRB A 200,036 457,815
Non-controlling interests FEVE SR 6,582 3,801
206,618 461,616
RMB cents RMB cents
AR#¥5 AR
Earnings per share attributable ZXEEARQTHEEFA
to owners of the Company EiEtze8REF
during the year 12
Basic earnings per share FREEAREF 2.33 5.32
Diluted earnings per share BREE RN 2.33 5.30
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
RERERAEMEZERER

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HZE2017F12 A3 HIEFE

2017 2016

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFT

Profit for the year REEFBR 206,618 461,616

Other comprehensive (expense)/ Hit2mE(EX) W

income:
Item that may be reclassified AJEEE 2B o HA
subsequently to profit or loss
Exchange differences on ERMELITEEE
translation of foreign
operations (11,239) 6,654

Other comprehensive (expense)/ AEEHMEZEBEX) W -
income for the year, net of tax Mk TiIE (11,239) 6,654

Total comprehensive income for rEERXHNREEHE

the year 195,379 468,270
Total comprehensive income 2HEHKNALERE .
attributable to:
Owners of the Company RRARHER A 188,816 464,593
Non-controlling interests FEPE SR A 6,563 3,677
195,379 468,270
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

REEEREBR

As at 31 December 2017
M2017%F12A31H

2017 2016
Notes RMB’'000 RMB’000
it ARETT AREFT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB KRG 14 7,171,794 4,259,254
Land use rights T A 15 355,001 232,948
Intangible assets EmEEAE 16 1,004,608 1,067,511
Interests in associates REEE N 2R 17 281,386 280,975
Interests in joint ventures REELEIER 18 1,396,107 1,294,357
Available-for-sale financial assets At ESREE 19 4,726 4,826
Trade and bill receivables U E ZBR 3 & =ik 21 140,377 —
Prepayments, deposits and other TERFIE - ek
receivables Hofh e GRIE 22 692,334 496,868
Finance lease receivables AR ERIWRIR 19,100 —
Deferred tax assets RIEFHIBE E 32 33,256 24,791
11,098,689 7,661,530
Current assets REBEE
Inventories 5E 20 50,269 81,447
Trade and bill receivables EWE SRR RER 21 1,227,743 1,157,909
Prepayments, deposits and other ERHIE - B2k
receivables H b e W sk IE 22 897,837 884,401
Finance lease receivables Bh A& B E Y s 5,100 —
Amounts due from associates FEUL B & N B FRIE 17 28,250 99,204
Amounts due from joint ventures BUL & & EFNIE 18 354,167 782,893
Financial assets at fair value BRARBEAEBRZ
through profit or loss TREE 23 34,280 43,948
Cash and cash equivalents RENREEFMBEIEAE 24 1,011,294 1,891,277
Restricted deposits R EITFER 24 99,509 —
3,708,449 4,941,079
Assets of a disposal company BHEARANENE
classified as held for sale NAIZEBE 26 — 1,736,740
3,708,449 6,677,819
Total assets BEEHAEE 14,807,138 14,339,349
LIABILITIES =L
Non-current liabilities FRBERE
Bank borrowings RITHE 29 3,575,599 3,060,785
Other borrowings HAb B3 30 1,380,555 —
Bonds payable FERESH 31 299,324 199,451
Loans from a joint venture EEDLEZER 18 — 40,500
Deferred tax liabilities EER A B E 32 3,900 4,463
Deferred government grants 3 A TR 45 B 33 24,136 20,267
Payables for construction in 15 B 25 2 FET /I8
progress 28 652,033 —
5,935,547 3,325,466
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED)

REEERBR(A)

As at 31 December 2017
M2017%F12A31H

2017 2016
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Wit AREFT AREFITT
Current liabilities REBAE
Trade and bill payables EREZERAREE 27 1,644,387 3,600,452
Payables for construction in 18 B i 2 R RE -
progress, other payables and Hip S smE &
accruals fEZtE 28 1,409,986 729,183
Amounts due to associates FETESE & R R FRIE 17 3,502 12,632
Amounts due to joint ventures ENAEDERIA 18 13,471 79,132
Bank borrowings RITIER 29 513,246 365,875
Other borrowings HAu B3 30 28,120 —
Current income tax liabilities R IE 3,733 11,321
3,616,445 4,798,595
Liabilities directly associated with REARERENB AR
a disposal company classified as Z8afE
held for sale 26 — 989,538
3,616,445 5,788,133
Total liabilities BEAKE 9,551,992 9,113,599
Net current assets RBEEZFE 92,004 889,686
Total assets less current EERERRBEE
liabilities 11,190,693 8,551,216
Net assets EEFE 5,255,146 5,225,750
EQUITY R
Equity attributable to owners KAREE AELER
of the Company
Share capital A% A 34 75,164 75,645
Reserves G 5,082,632 4,994,632
5,157,796 5,070,277
Non-controlling interests FEEFI MRS 97,350 155,473
Total equity FEREEE 5,255,146 5,225,750

The consolidated financial statements on pages 140 to 315
were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of
Directors on 16 March 2018 and are signed on its behalf

by:

Liu Shunxing
2 )ig 52
Director

EF

HPNFE 140 AE3NSAZHBREN = —N
FZAFNBEEESHERTETETR

£FE

Liu Jianhong
gga

Director

EF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BHZE2017F12 A3 HIEFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

LIGEEIN
Premium
arising on
acquisition
of non- Non-
Share  Treasury Share  Contributed  controlling  Exchange Other  Retained controlling
capital shares  premium surplus— interests reserve  reserves  eamings  SubTotal interests Total equity
(Note 34)  (Note 34) (Note (b)) (Note (a))
L
BafiEL
e EFR  RfEE  SABK JEE EXRE  BbEE  REEA B EAEEE  REER
Wiz (k) W) w2a)
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ABBTE  ARBFL  AREFL  AREFT  AREFT  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR ARBFR AREFR
Balance at 1 January 2017 HTE1A1R 15,645 (62,674) 49816 2,359,083 (31,099) 17,100 102625 2159801 5010217 155473 5,225,750
Profit for the year TERET - - - - - - - 20003 20003 6582 20661
Other comprehensive expense — EA2ERMS - - - - - (1) - - (1 (19 Mm29
Total comprehensive (expense) ~ BEE2E(ER)
income for the year Woicitt - - - - - (11,220) - 200,036 188,816 6,563 195,379
Cancellation of reasuryshares BRI (A ¥
(Note 34 (i) & (i) (i) &) (481) 18731 (18,250) - - - - - - - -
Repurchase of ordinary shares~~ £BHEE
(Note 34 (i) (fiet340) - (M) - - - - - - (mmy - (1w
Vesting of shares under share award 813172 58
scheme (Note 35 (Hi35) - 8,134 (842) - - - (1292) - - - -
Share-based compensation WEHEREZ [T - - - - - - 3152 - 315 - 3,152
2016 final dividends EERE - - - - - - - (14758)  (74759) - (74,758)
Contrbutions by non- FEMERIE
controlling interests - - - - - - - - - 10,000 10,000
Acquistion of non-controllng FFEEBI R
interests - - - - (17,907) - - - (17,907) (83311 (101,218)
Disposal of partial intrest RENELTHH
in subsidiries i - - - - - - - - - 12375 12375
Dividend paid to non-controlling A8 F 35l
interests fEg - - - - - - - - - (3,750) (3,750)
Balance at 31 December 2017 W2017%12531R 75,164 (47,593) 830724 2,359,083 (49,006) 5,880 98485 2285079 5157,7% 9735 5,255,146
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (CONTINUED)

REERSHR(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HZE2017F12 A3 HIEFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

LIGEEIN
Premium
arising on
acquisition
of non- Non-
Share Treasury Share ~ Contributed ~ controlling ~ Exchange Other Retained controling
capital shares premium surplus Interests Teserve TESEIVeS eamings SubTotal interests — Total equity
(Note34) — (Note 34) (Note (b)) (Note (&)
Yigsemsle
BRFEE
s EfR BhAE  BARE ZRE  EREE  EBEBE  REEN B FEeER el
() (W) (W) (Ee)
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
NEETE  ARETT ARETT AREFT AEETT AREFr AREFr ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR
Balance at 1 January 2016 01651518 17449 (94,468) 5181712 2,399,003 (31,09) 1032 1044% 1777074 4721109 10079 4,821,905
Profit for the year RERET - - - - - - — 815 457805 3801 461616
Other comprehensive He2EhE/
incomellexpense) (85) - - - - - - - My e
Total comprehensive income RER2ENE
for the year a5 - - - - - 6,778 - 457815 464,593 36771 468,210
Cancellation of treasury shares — EFBRRF# 2
(Note 34 (i) & (i) (il & i) (1,804) 08,783 (66,979) - - - - - - - -
Repurchase of ordinary shares~—~~ £EHEE
(Note 34 i) (W) - ([47.83) - - - - - - (47,834) - (47,834)
Vesting o shares under share award B2 58
scheme (ofe 32) (H23) - 108 (1370 - - - (9,468) - - - -
Share-based compensation HRRBEEZ R - - - - - - 7597 - 7,597 - 7507
Interim dividends paid R - - - - - - - By (518 - (51
Contributions by non-controlling 335l
interests it - - - - - - - - - 51,000 51,000
Balance at 31 December 2016~ R2016% 128318 75,645 (62,674) 449816 2,359,003 (31,099) 17,100 102625 2159801 5070277 155473 525750
Notes: Hret -
(@)  Pursuant to the relevant laws in the People’s Republic of (a) REHPBEMARER  FERADFREAD
China (the “PRC"), each of the subsidiaries established in the BEARDFNEZ10% AT RBAE  BHE
PRC is required to allocate 10% of its profit after tax to the L ABEFARFMERZ50% o & EISHE
statutory reserves fund until such fund reaches 50% of the BRI AR REABRIF IR AA
companies’ registered capital. The statutory reserves fund MEAR25% XEBBATRAHEEAEER
can be utilised, upon approval by the relevant authorities, to SAEESBINAREMERS - R20174F
offset accumulated losses or to increase registered capital of 12A318  AREREEERBAEZET
the subsidiaries, provided that such fund is maintained at a W & %8/ AR #397,359,0007T(2016 :
minimum of 25% of the subsidiaries’ registered capital. As at AR¥272,650,0007T) °
31 December 2017, retained profits of the Group comprised
statutory reserves fund amounting to RMB397,359,000
(2016: RMB272,650,000).
(b)  Other reserves mainly represented share-bsaed compensation (b) EMHFEEETESREUEFERRZUENDAE

recognised in prior years of which the related share options
have forfeited after the vesting date or were still not
exercised at the expiry date.

ERzf ZSEXNZBEDRITERE
FTUBREREERMAEARITE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
RERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BHZE2017F12 A3 HIEFE

2017 2016
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
i3 AR¥FT AREFT
Cash flows from operating RERETHRERE
activities
Cash generated from operations REEBFEZRE 36(a) 355,180 456,758
Income tax paid TSR (80,548) (16,517)
Net cash generated from RETBEEZREF
operating activities | 274,632 440,241
Cash flows from investing REBRETHZ2HERE
activities
Payments for property, plant and EEME  BEMEE
equipment (2,473,637) (1,605,968)
Payments for land use rights BB B T AR (113,599) (94,563)
Capital injection to joint ventures MEeEgrETE (27,061) (15,190)
Net proceeds from disposal/de- BB/ IHEMEB AR
registration of subsidiaries BE 5 36(b) 409,362 275,549
Settlement of prior year disposal U o136 & 2R & A A
consideration receivable ZHE 36(b) 28,512 7,157
Net proceeds from disposal of BREREDLEMFHIA
joint ventures FEE 36(c) — 81,429
Net proceeds from disposal of B B & N T TS RIE
associates SRR 36(d) 29,704 —
Payments in relation to disposal of AFFERENBR A
subsidiaries in prior years Fr sz 9 50R (4,030) (8,450)
Net proceeds from disposal of HEWSE - BEREH
property, plant and equipment FrS 3R 36(e) 170 8,809
Acquisition of a subsidiary LT B B BB 1 ) 39 2,948 —
Net proceeds from disposal of HEEMESRMEEMS
other financial assets A 3,486,516 2,745,493
Purchase of other financial assets EEHMERMEE (3,460,204) (2,767,878)
Net proceeds from disposal of HEMNHEESREE
available-for-sale financial assets Fris #%8 — 22,160
Purchase of available-for-sale BEAHLESRHEE
financial assets — (1,750)
Dividends received from joint BlEEPEIRE
ventures 77,213 8,150
Dividends received from associates =Bt L A F 2 AL E — 14,214
Deposits received for disposal of =t B PNCIN g e
subsidiaries b7 31,705 124,285
Deposits paid for project HB®RETEN
investments (80,000) (62,616)
Refund of deposits paid for Ui B B R A
project investments 16,718 —
Repayment of loan from a joint WEl&EPETER
venture — 49,492
Advance to joint ventures ME &R BN — (4,788)
Repayment from joint ventures I E& &2 BR 9,853 18,003
Receipts of government grants BT 8 B 2 Mk 5,777 3,216
Interest received 2 UCFE 22,638 16,956
Placement of restricted deposits F 8 2 PR 117 5K (175,966) —
Withdrawal of restricted deposits Z PR BIF FRE 76,457 —
Net cash used in investing REZBFAZESFE
activities (2,136,924) (1,186,290)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

RERTRER

For the year ended 31 December 2017

HZE2017F 12 A3 BIEFE

2017 2016
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
baE ARETFT AREFITT
Cash flows from financing REMETH2HERE
activities
Payment for share repurchase M 5T 46 2 O B8 34 (11,784) (47,834)
Proceeds from bank borrowings B RS IE 1,021,338 1,549,640
Repayment of bank borrowings EEER (359,153) (409,694)
Proceeds from other borrowings H &S IR 538,413 —
Repayments of other borrowings BEAMER (37,403) —
Issue of bonds BITES 31 100,000 200,000
Bond issue expense BITEHFCEA 31 (136) (720)
Dividends paid to owners of the IRBRETATHEB A
Company (74,758) (75,188)
Dividends paid to non-controlling XTI E T IS
interests ERFEEA (3,750) —
Acquisition of non-controlling LT B B BB 1 )
interests of subsidiaries R MR (21,304) —
Proceeds from disposal of partial B kB
interest in subsidiaries without NAE R E
losing control 9,282 —
Contributions by non-controlling FEJZE I M A 2 3R
interests 10,000 51,000
Interest paid 2RFLE (225,574) (187,419)
Net cash generated from RMETBHREEZ
financing activities B R 945,171 1,079,785
Net (decrease)/increase in BHERRLEEER
cash and cash equivalents GRD),/#hnFEaE (917,121) 333,736
Cash and cash equivalents at FUsHekBEe%EE
beginning of the year HE 1,934,280 1,596,081
Effect of foreign exchange rate RekREFBEERZ
changes M 5 & (5,865) 4,463
Cash and cash equivalents at end FXRHERREZLE
of the year == 1,011,294 1,934,280
Analysis of balances of cash and BRERBESZEEE &8
cash equivalents 23
Cash and bank balances B & KIRTTA 24 1,110,803 1,891,277
Restricted deposits PR 17 3K 24 (99,509) —
Cash and bank balances DEARBERFEREN
attributable to a disposal BENARZE® &I
company classified as held for ITHE AR
sale 26 — 43,003
1,011,294 1,934,280
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

o)

PR

GENERAL INFORMATION

Concord New Energy Group Limited (the “Company”)
is incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted company
with limited liability and its shares are listed on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Hong
Kong Stock Exchange”). The address of its registered
office is Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton
HM11, Burmuda. The address of principal place
of business is Room 204-205, China Wind Power
Building, No. 9, South Shou Ti Road, Haidian District,
Beijing, Mainland China.

During the year, the Company and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) were involved in the
following principal activities of investment in power
plants, engineering, procurement, construction and
equipment manufacturing, and provision of power
plant operation and maintenance services.

These consolidated financial statements are presented
in Renminbi (“RMB"), which is also the functional
currency of the Company.

EXEH

e REBBERRAA(KRAA)
EEBRAESEMKRLZERA
Al AAIRNDEBRBESFXGM LT
([BEEBHFRZAAM]) - KD A FM
i 4 & Clarendon House, 2 Church
Street,Hamilton HM11, Burmuda - =+ £&
EEMIE AR AL RSB R S R
9 5% R Bl B B K 204-205 = o

ERFEEAR > ARAREKB QRS
WIAEBDEIEZRETIER: R
A ERBRET  REBHEE ERETT
NgERERIRE -

BIERBIHHA  AFaMBEHRRHNUA
RE(TARE DS -

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG EANITREBIEEHKmE.
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") B ([&BBEHREER )
21 Amendments to HKFRSs that are 21 AEEBRHEMCEAMEREE
mandatorily effective for the current year Bl 21857
The Group has applied the following amendments AEEBDARNFEFRNEMNBE S
to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of St A @B K 7 FRIERELE
Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA") for Bl 2 Tt {&ET -
the first time in the current year.
Amendments to HKAS 7 BRGFTERE 7 FUBETA)
Disclosure Initiative HEE
Amendments to HKAS 12 EHGIDERE 12 RUSHTA)
Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for R 1S 2 R A R IR S B iR
Unrealised Losses
Amendments to HKFRS 12 BB ISIREAERIE 1257
(7T A)
As part of the Annual Improvements to HKFRSs ZE B FE IR A CE RII2014-2016 8
2014-2016 Cycle B F R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o)

PR

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(Continued)

2.1

Amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
(Continued)

Except as described below, the application of the
amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has
had no material impact on the Group’s financial
performance and positions for the current and
prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in
these consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative

The Group has applied these amendments
for the first time in the current year. The
amendments require an entity to provide
disclosures that enable users of financial
statements to evaluate changes in liabilities
arising from financing activities, including
both cash and non-cash changes. In addition,
the amendments also require disclosures on
changes in financial assets if cash flows from
those financial assets were, or future cash flows
will be, included in cash flows from financing
activities.

Specifically, the amendments require the
following to be disclosed: (i) changes from
financing cash flows; (ii) changes arising from
obtaining or losing control of subsidiaries or
other businesses; (iii) the effect of changes
in foreign exchange rates; (iv) changes in fair
values; and (v) other changes.

A reconciliation between the opening and
closing balances of these items is provided
in Note 37. Consistent with the transition
provisions of the amendments, the Group has
not disclosed comparative information for the
prior year. Apart from the additional disclosure
in Note 37, the application of these amendments
has had no impact on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.

2.

EFH%&*TREW*TE%FJH%%%E
RI(TEBHBHRERER D) (&)
21 FAEERHERZEBUBHREE
RIZ&RT ()
BRISN - AEERBEBY R

EEANETHARFEA KB HE
BRAFE RIAEF R R
/AR A B IRR TSR E L
BEATE °

EERERNETRRFAE 2
&7

AEBRAFEERERZETES
FHERNERT - BRI MR — (A E B 4%

ERBEERAS MRS ZRMER
BHAZAERS  EHBEREE
REARBELRBEEMFEE

Epaﬂﬁ/%%bﬁPﬁ/ﬁXZi%ﬁZ“
B o BEIN - B RT AR [R] By 25K

BHReRERFESIBHREEZ
MEETHRERTERMEEZED
R -

FRIREIE  REFTERNUTRA
252%)32?5 : (i)@ﬁiﬁimbz

(i) Y 5 5% 2 4 B 28 ) o B
$H2EHEZ LD i) B E
REBIBE ()2 HE2E
B : (v) KA

BB R B N R e 2 BT BR
FEMFE37R A IR o EEFIAP
BEGFA -2 AEBEREWE
E—FEHLER - RHE375
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG 2.
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS ("HKFRSs")
(Continued)

FERFMAIIREEIEBMBREE
A(TERMBREER D) (&)

2.2 New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet 2.2 CEMEERERZHFTREBE

effective

The Group has not early applied the following
new and revised HKFRSs that have been issued

but are not yet effective:

HKFRS 9
BAMBHRELRE R

HKFRS 15
BAMBWEERE 155

HKFRS 16
EBU R ERE 165

HKFRS 17
BAMBWEERE TR

HK(IFRIC)-Int 22
AR (AR BHRE2E
ZBg) —BEF2

Bre
)L

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23

FE(BRMBERERERE

g) — BEF 23

Amendments to HKFRS 2

FEGFTERE 25 (BRI A)

Amendments to HKFRS 4

FAEGTERE 43R (BRI A)

Amendments to HKFRS 9
BB HRELERE 95K
(BETA)

ZEBUBHREER

AREBEBTARANEAATEHE
2017512 A31H 2 EMEH K
EZFE] RSB R 2 BB IS TR

EESIR

Financial Instruments'
eHMTA'

Revenue from Contracts with Customers and related Amendments'

EREFERZ WA R RIGREET

Leases’
HE’

Insurance Contracts®

REE#"

Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration'
SNEX B RTE(TE1E

Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments’

FrgH@ErEs THE 1’

Classification and Measurement of Share-based Payment
Transactions'
BRPENIRZ G2 7 &

Applying HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments with HKFRS 4 Insurance
Contracts'

RIZE BRI T ERFE 4 55 (R IR & R JE & B R 7548 & 2R
ZEoxeMTA'

Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation’
AT B #HIE’
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG 2. ERYIRKBIEBMBHREE

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") B ([ BB EHEER |) (&)

(Continued)

2.2 New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet 2.2 CEMEERERZHFTREBE
effective (Continued) ZEBUBREAER(E)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate
and HKAS 28 or Joint Venture®

BB WELERZE 105 REHERBENR BEPEBEELHE KA
REBGETERZE 285
(BETA)

Amendments to HKAS 28 Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures®
EREHERE 28R (EFR) RBELR A B ELEPZRBER’

Amendments to HKAS 40 Transfers of Investment Property’

BB EUFA0RERTA) WEEMRZEE

Amendments to HKAS 28 As part of Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle'
EREGEAE 285 (BRI A) BBMBHREER 2014-2016 Bz FEBGE"

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle’
FEMBRE LR 2EFT BB IR ERI2015-2017 FE2 B FEEF’

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or 1. RZE—N\F—A—HBxEEHA
after 1 January 2018 182 F 2 B AR

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or 2. RIZE-NF-HA—H=EEHA
after 1 January 2019 12 FEHAR AR

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or 3. AWM BHEERBCFES
after a date to be determined MFEE

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or 4., RIZT—F—F—HA=H%ER
after 1 January 2021 162 F 2 B AR

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments BRERBHRELEANFE IR LM T A

HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the BBV BHRELENEFEIRS|I AR

classification and measurement of financial BEMeMBECHERE - —

assets, financial liabilities, general hedge BE RS EZHRTEALE/E

accounting and impairment requirements for EZRMEHRTE

financial assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

o)

PR

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“"HKFRSs")
(Continued)

2.2 New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 which are relevant
to the Group are:

o all recognised financial assets that
are within the scope of HKFRS 9 are
required to be subsequently measured at
amortised cost or fair value. Specifically,
debt investments that are held within
a business model whose objective is to
collect the contractual cash flows, and
that have contractual cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal outstanding are
generally measured at amortised cost
at the end of subsequent accounting
periods. Debt instruments that are held
within a business model whose objective
is achieved both by collecting contractual
cash flows and selling financial assets, and
that have contractual terms that give rise
on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding, are
generally measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI").
All other financial assets are measured at
their fair value at subsequent accounting
periods. In addition, under HKFRS 9,
entities may make an irrevocable election
to present subsequent changes in the fair
value of an equity investment (that is not
held for trading) in other comprehensive
income, with only dividend income
generally recognised in profit or loss.

2.

FERFMAIIREEIEBMBREE
AT ERMBREER ] (&)

2.2 CHEME R RERZHET KRBT
ZEBMBHRELR(E)

FEMBGHREENEIORTHTA
(&

m=

SRR 2 BB MRS R
FIORIEBMRE -

o EBEWHHELERFIWME
REEAZMESREER
HERZHBHEHRARX2AE
Bt E - HRIZENKERE
MRERERBZZEBR
ATHE BERNEXE
BMEREERNSEZFEM
EEANREREZEBHR
B —RRERZEFHR
HHHK AN —RETE - B
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EHEERMEEZEBRA
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NARERAREERAS ZH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBBRRME

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“"HKFRSs")
(Continued)

2.2 New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

o in relation to the impairment of financial
assets, HKFRS 9 requires an expected credit
loss model, as opposed to an incurred
credit loss model under HKAS 39. The
expected credit loss model requires an
entity to account for expected credit losses
and changes in those expected credit losses
at each reporting date to reflect changes in
credit risk since initial recognition. In other
words, it is no longer necessary for a credit
event to have occurred before credit losses
are recognised.

Based on the Group’s financial instruments
and risk management policies as at 31
December 2017, the directors of the
Company anticipate the following potential
impact on initial application of HKFRS 9.

Classification and measurement:

o Debt instruments classified as loans and
receivables carried at amortised cost as
disclosed in Notes 17, 18, 21 and 22 other
than bill receivables as described below:
these are held within a business model
whose objective is to collect the contractual
cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal
outstanding. Accordingly, these financial
assets will continue to be subsequently
measured at amortised cost upon the
application of HKFRS 9;

2.

FERFMAIIREEIEBMBREE
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ZEBMBHRELR(E)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

o)

PR

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

(Continued)

2.2 New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet

effective (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

FERFMAIIREEIEBMBREE
AT ERMBREER ] (&)

2.2 CHEME R RERZHET KRBT
ZEBMBHRELR(E)

FEMBGHREENEIORTHTA

Classification and measurement: (Continued)

Bill receivables classified as loans and
receivables carried at amortised cost
as disclosed in Note 21: these are
held within a business model whose
objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and for selling
the bill receivables (through endorsing to
suppliers or discounting to banks), and
have contractual terms that give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding. Accordingly,
bill receivables will be measured at
FVTOCI upon the application of HKFRS 9,
with movements in the fair value taken
through other comprehensive income,
which is different from the current account
treatment. When the bill receivable is
derecognised, the cumulative fair value
gain or loss previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified from
equity to profit or loss and recognised
in other gains and losses. However,
due to the short-term nature of the bill
receivables, their carrying amount is
considered approximate to their fair value,
and therefore the directors of the Company
do not anticipate the change of the
accounting treatment will have a material
impact on the Group's consolidated
financial statements.

W B R EUWE TR R R
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21 E  ZFRREEA
B ACRBRHERSEX
FERITRAE ) WRAHRE
MERKERKERZER
BARE - HEOGRINE
EHHELABEINARE R
AREEREZNBEZRER
BBt BREBRERME
EREVBREENFEIR
RiIZAREEFELEEH
AFARMES WS ARE
BEEHTARLMBLES K
HERETHRAGHEE - &
I EREREEE - ZATR
HitiR e WP Rz Rat
NAEEREHEBERA
EMOBRNANBRTE
Hit s & BB & 7 LA g
BB HREBURRERZ
RENE  RAHKEEE
MR ERAEE Bt
ARREFRRHASHEREER
BFREHAKEZEHME
WRELEERVE -

154

CONCORD NEW ENERGY GROUP LIMITED

BEHEREBERL A



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG 2. ERAHITREBIEEMERESE
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“"HKFRSs") B([EEBEHREED |)(£&)
(Continued)

2.2 New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet 2.2 CEMEERERZHFTREBE
effective (Continued) ZEEBBBRELED(E)
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued) BAEMBRELEDE IS LHTA
(&)

Classification and measurement: (Continued) SHREREE (&)

Equity securities classified as available-
for-sale investments carried at cost less
impairment as disclosed in Note 19: these
securities are qualified for designation
as measured at FVTOCI under HKFRS 9,
however, the Group plans not to elect the
option for designating these securities as
FVTOCI and will measure these securities
at fair value with subsequent fair value
gains or losses to be recognised in profit or
loss. Upon initial application of HKFRS 9,
fair value gains relating to these securities,
representing the differences between cost
less impairment and fair value would be
adjusted to retained profits as at 1 January
2018.

Listed equity securities classified as at fair
value through profit or loss (“FVTPL") as
disclosed in Note 23: these securities will
continue to be measured on the same basis
under HKFRS 9.

All other financial assets and financial
liabilities will continue to be measured on
the same bases as are currently measured
under HKAS 39.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

o)

PR

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG 2. ERAHITREBIEEMERESE
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“"HKFRSs") B([EEBEHREED |)(£&)
(Continued)

2.2 New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet 2.2 CEMEERERZHFTREBE

effective (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

Impairment:

In general, the directors of the Company
anticipate that the application of the expected
credit loss model of HKFRS 9 will result in
earlier provision of credit losses which are not
yet incurred in relation to the Group’s financial
assets measured at amortised costs and other
items that subject to the impairment provisions
upon application of HKFRS 9 by the Group.

Based on the assessment by the directors of the
Company, if the expected credit loss model was
to be applied by the Group, the accumulated
amount of impairment loss to be recognised
by the Group as at 1 January 2018 would not
be significantly increased as compared to the
accumulated amount recognised under HKAS
39, which mainly attributable to expected credit
loss provision on trade receivables, and amounts
due from joint ventures and associates.

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with

Customers

HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single
comprehensive model for entities to use in
accounting for revenue arising from contracts
with customers. HKFRS 15 will supersede the
current revenue recognition guidance including
HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction
Contracts and the related Interpretations when it
becomes effective.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBBRRME

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“"HKFRSs")
(Continued)

2.2 New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with

Customers (Continued)

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity
should recognise revenue to depict the transfer
of promised goods or services to customers in an
amount that reflects the consideration to which
the entity expects to be entitled in exchange
for those goods or services. Specifically, the
standard introduces a 5-step approach to
revenue recognition:

. Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a
customer

o Step 2: Identify the performance
obligations in the contract

o Step 3: Determine the transaction price

o Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to
the performance obligations in
the contract

° Step 5: Recognise revenue when
(or as) the entity satisfies a
performance obligation

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue
when (or as) a performance obligation is
satisfied, i.e. when ‘control’ of the goods or
services underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customer. Far
more prescriptive guidance has been added
in HKFRS 15 to deal with specific scenarios.
Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required
by HKFRS 15.

2.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

o)

PR

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS ("HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

2.2 New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (Continued)

In 2016, the HKICPA issued Clarifications to
HKFRS 15 in relation to the identification of
performance obligations, principal versus agent
considerations, as well as licensing application
guidance.

The Group’s revenue is mainly generated from
the provision of engineering, procurement,
construction and equipment manufacturing
("EPC"), the sale of electricity and the provision
of power plant operation and maintenance
services. The expected impacts arising from
the adoption of HKFRS 15 on the Group are
summarised as follows:

The Group's existing contracts for engineering,
procurement and construction ("EPC
contracts”) with customers normally have
multiple deliverables (mainly including design,
construction, sale of equipment and installation).
Currently under HKAS 18, the Group recognises
the revenue from the construction under EPC
contracts on the percentage of completion basis;
and the revenue from the sale of equipment
under EPC contracts when the goods are
delivered and titles have passes to customer and
the significant risks and rewards of ownership
of the equipment have been transferred to the
customer. Based on the terms of the existing
EPC contracts, the Group’s customer controls
the assets during construction period, therefore,
the directors of the Company consider that the
revenue from EPC contracts will be recognised
over time under HKFRS 15. The directors of
the Company intend to apply the limited
retrospective method with cumulative effect
of initial application recognised in opening
balance of retained earnings at 1 January
2018